Habib Sugar Mills Limited

Annual Report 2018



Contents

Company Information

Vision and Mission Statement

Code of Conduct

Notice of Annual General Meeting

o | =~ | & w| M

Six years' review at glance 1

Chairman Report ik

Director Report 12

Statement of Compliance with listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)Regulations, 201720

Independent Auditors’ Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with the

Code of Corporate Governance 22
Auditors’ Report to the Members on Audit of Unconsolidated Financial Statements 23
Unconsoclidated Statement of Financial Position 27
Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Account 28
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 29
Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 30
Unconsolidated Statement Cash Flows 31
Motes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 32
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members on Audit of Conselidated Financial Statements 69
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 73
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Account 74
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 75
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76
Consolidated Statement Cash Flows 77
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 78
Fattern of Shareholding 1156
o {55 126
g St 7R 128

Form of Proxy




Company Information

Board of
Directors

Audit
Commitles

Human
Resource &
Remuneration
Committee

Company
Secretary

Registered
Office

Bulk Storage

Bankers

Statutory
Auditars

Share
Registrar

Aszghar D. Habib

Ali Raza D. Habib
Muhammad Mawaz Tishhna
Murtaza H. Habib

Amin Ali Abdul Hamid
Shams Mohammad Haji
Munawar A. Habib

Faroug Habib Rahimioola
Rasesul Hasan

Amin Ali Abudl Hamid
Ali Raza D. Habib
Shams Mohammad Haji

Ehams Mohammad Hayi
Amin Ali Abdul Hamid

Raecesul Hasan

Amir Bashir Ahmed

drd Floor, Imperial Court,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,

Karachi-75530

Phones : (+92-21) 35680036 - 5 Lines
Fax : (+92-21) 35684086

www ¢ habib.com/sugar

E-mail : sugar@habib.com

Sugar & Distillery Division

MNawabshah District Shaheed Benazirabad
Phones :© (+32-244) 360751 - 5 Lines
Fax ¢ (+92-244) 361314

Taxtile Division

D-140/B-1 Manghopir Road,

S.L.T.E. Karachi-75700

Phones : (+92-21) 32571325, 32572119
Fax © (+92-21) 32572118

Terminal

60/1-8, Qil Installation Araa
Keamari Karachi-75820

Phonas @ (+82-21) 32852003-4
Fax o {+92-21) 32852005

Allied Bank Limited

Bank AL Habib Limited

First Women Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limitad

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Mational Bank of Pakistan

Standard Charlered Bank {Pakistan) Limited
United Bank Limited

E.Y Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

THE Associates (Pvt.) Limitad
151 Floor, 40-C, Block-8,
P.E.C.H.5. Karachi-75400

Phones © (+92-21) 111-000-322
Fax : (+82-21) 34168271
E-mail : secrotarat@thk.com.pk
; info@thk.com.pk
Wahsita ; waww thk.com.pk

Chairman

{Resigned on July 24, 2018}
(Co-oped on July 24, 2018)

Chief Executive

Chairman
Mambar

Membar

Chairman
Mambar

Member



VISION STATEMENT

We aim to be a leading manufacturer and supplier of quality sugar, ethanol, liquidified carbon
dioxide (Co,) and household textiles in local and international markets. We aspire to be known for

the quality of our products and intend to play a pivotal role in the economic and social
development of Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

As a prominent producer and supplier of sugar, ethanol, liquidified carbon dioxide (Co.) and
household textiles, we shall continue to strive to achieve excellence in performance and aim to
exceed the expectations of all stakeholders. We target to achieve technological advancements to

inculcate the most efficient, ethical and time tested business practices in our management.




Code of Conduct

The founders of Habib Sugar Mills Limited were visionaries who astablishad the company on very sound
principles and envisioned its development and growth on the basis of making no compromises in any
aspects of business practices. The company takes pride in adherence to its principles and continues to
serve its customers, stakeholders and society based on the following guidelines :

Products
. To produce refined, high-grade sugar that is edible and hygienic and provides all the nutrition
and food value at standards determined by the company, which would exceed industry
norms and averages.
*  To produce by-products and allied products including molasses, ethanal and liquid carbon
dioxide (CO2).
. To diversify into other products such as home textiles thus consuming indigenous raw
material and generating export earmings.
Systems & Processes

To regularly update and upgrade manufacturing systems and processes so as to keep
abreast with technological advancements, achieve economies of production and transfer
knowledge and skill to workers.

To develop and maintain the technical and professional standards, standard operating
procedures and stringent Quality Control measures with on-line quality assurance at every
stage of manufacture.

To continuously conduct product research and develop new products, while improving upen
the existing products, using ideal additives and packaging material.

To regularly maintain, replace and upgrade all machinery and equipment for smooth
working, optimum output and ensure safe working in all production units.

To maintain a smooth work-flow in all departments with an effective communication system
contained within the framework of principles yet allowing the required degree of autonomy
forefficient functioning.

Management & Employees

To employ only the appropriately suited human resource through the selection and
recruitment process based on the commensurate gualifications and experience criteria
without any non-professional considerations, without any bias or prejudice of race, cast,
colour, creed or religious beliefs.

To ensure that all management personnel are adequately gualified to perform management
functions as assigned.

To guide, direct and motivate employees to perform functions and to recognize and reward
employees based on their performance outputs.

To measure employee’s performance by a pre-determined criteria so as to be fair and
equitable towards every single employee.



Financial

To ensure that all employees work towards achievement of corporate objectives, individually
and collectively as a team and conduct themselves at work and in society as respectable
employees and responsible citizens.

To regularly train all employees at all levels to improve their knowledge and =kill and provide
employees with a career path whereby they can seek a planned betterment in their
professional and personal life.

To ensure that all employees and management personnel strictly adhere to the company
rules and regulations and cbserve the best codes of conduct and abide by all laws of
Pakistan.

To make timely payment of salaries, wages and all allowances and benefits to all employees
in line with their terms.

To ensure all directors and employees of the company shall undertake such activities,
whether perscnal or professional, thatin no way conflicts with the interests of the company
but contributes towards the betterment, development and growth of the organization in
particular and the industry in general.

To implement an effective, transparent and secure financial reporting and internal control
system so as to ensure compliance with regulatory factors as well as meet all obligations of
payable and receivables and keep investors, shareholders and management fully aware.

To ensure effective utilization of all company resources and plan and operate resource
utilization in order to produce better results and generate better yields and facilitate timely
decisions.

To place a strict Internal Audit system to study, analyze, review and report all company
eaming and spending and enhance reliability of all financial information and build
shareholders confidence.

To regularly prepare, as per pre-determined schedules, all financial reports and present
accounts to the board for review and analysis and show trends based on company income,
revenues and expenses and industry trends.

To ensure cost effectiveness and purchase goods and services based on developed criteria,
vandor assessment and market competitiveness and evaluate options on prices, terms,
products/services, substitute available, prior to purchase.

To ensure timely and proper payments as per negotiated terms to all suppliers and deduct
applicable taxes so as to enhance corporate credibility and image.

To maintain an excellent relationship with bankers and utilize banking facilities in a mannerto
benefit company whilst making proper use of funding and facilities available and ensuring
no-defaults.

Adherence to Law

The company shall at all times strictly adhere to all laws of the country and fulfill all statutory
requirements and ensure timely, proper and full payment of all applicable taxes, rales, duties
and/or any other levies as may be imposed from time to time.




Environment

.

Planning

The company shall use all means to ensure a clean, safe, healthy and pollution free
environment not only for its workers and employees but for the well being of all people who
live in and around any of the production and manufacturing units and employ such
technology as may be beneficial in maintaining a healthy and hygienic working and living
environment.

The company shall prepare an annual plan with clearly defined objectives, goals and
strategies and implement those plans with a close watch on achievements and monitor and
caontrol measures shall be builtin to ensure achievement of objectives and enhancement of
corporate image.



Notice of Annual General Meeting

Natice is hereby given that the 57" Annual General Mesting of Habib Sugar Mills Limited will be held on Monday,
January 28, 2019 at 11:15 a.m. at Jinnah Auditorium, The Institute of Bankers Pakistan (IBF), M.T. Khan Road,
Karachi to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

To receive and consider the audited financial staternents, the Directors’ report and the Auditors' repart for the year
ended September 30, 2018,

2. To approve payment of cash dividend @ 55% i.e. As. 2.75 per share of As. 5 each lor the year ended Seplember
30, 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To appoeint auditors of the Company for the year ending September 30, 2019 and fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Amir Bashir Ahmed

Karachi: December 26, 2018 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, January 14, 2019 to Monday, January
28, 2019 both days inclusiva.

2. A member entitled lo attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another member of the Company as a
proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. Proxies in order to be effactive must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed at least 48 hours before the time of meeting.

3. For identification, owners of the physical shares and CDC account holder should present Computernzed National
Identity Card (CNIC} along with participants D number and CDC account Number. In case of appointment of proxy
by such account holders, the guidelines as containad in the SECP's circular of January 26, 2000 are to be followed.

4, Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses and their contact numbers immediately to our
Share Registrar, THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Karachi,

5. Pursuanl o the directive of the Securilies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), it is mandatory to
mention CNIC number of member on members’ registar and other statutory returns. Those shareholders who have
not submitted copy of their CNIC to the Company are once again requested to submit copy of their CNIC, otherwise
the Company will be constrained under section 243(2)(a) of the Companias Act, 2017 to withhold dividend of such
sharcholders.

6. The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2017 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount
of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rales are as under;

(i) Faorfilers of income lax relurns 15%

(i)  Fornon-filers ofincometax refums 20%

Shareholdars who ara filers are advised to make sure that their namaes are entered in to Active Tax Payer List (ATL)
provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be treated as non-filers and
tax on thair cash dividend will be deducted atthe rate of 20% instead of 15%.

For shareholders holding their shares jointly, as per the clarification issued by the Federal Board of Revenue,
withholding tax will be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-
haolder(s) basad on their shareholding proportions. Therefore, all shareholdars who hold shares jointly are required
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to provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-helder(s) in respect of shares held by them
to our Share Registrar, in writing as follows

Company FalicdCDC| Total Principal Sharcholder Joint Shareholder
Name | Account |shares [GameSanaTNIC #] Shareholding Proportion | Name and GNIC #| Sharehoiding Proportion
No. [Mo. of Shares) {MNo. of Shares)

The required information must reach to the Company's Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it
will be assumed that the shares are equally held by principal shareholder and joint holder(s).

The Corporate shareholders having CDC account are required to have their National Tax number (NTN) updated
with their respective participants, whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the
Company or Company's Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited. The shareholders while sending NTN
or NTHN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective Folio numbers.

7.  Mandatory requirement of Bank details for payment of dividend

Pursuant to the provision of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, a listed company is required to pay cash
dividend to shareholders only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. In order to receive your dividends directly into your Bank account, please complete the particulars as
mentioned below and return this letter duly signed tothe Registrar of the Company M/s THK Associates (Pvt.)
Limited, Karachi. CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend Mandate directly to their broker
(participant) / CDC.

SHAREHOLDERS PARTICULARS FOR ELECTRONIC CREDIT OF CASH DIVIDENDS

I'WeMessrs,

Being a / the sharehaolder () of Habib Sugar Mills Limited (the Company), herehy, authorize the Company, to directly
credil cash dividends declared by it, ime lo time in fulure, in my bank account as detailed below;

Mame of Shareholder
Folio No./CDC Participant ID & A/C No
Contact number Land Line: Cell No:

Email address
Mame of Bank

Bank branch & mailing address
IBEAN Number

Title of Account

CNIC Nao. (Copy attached)

NTHN (incase of corporate enlity)

It is stated that the above particulars provided by me/us are correct to the best of my knowledge and | shall keep the
Fompany!Par‘ticipanh’CDC investor account services informed in casa of any changes in the said particulars in
uture.,

Signature of Shareholder

Mote: Please provide complete IBAN after checking with your concerned bank branch to enable electronic credit
directly into your bank account.

The paymeant of cash dividend will be process on the basis of the IBAN alone. Habib Sugar Mills Lirmited will
rely on the IBAN as per instructions provided by the shareholder. The Company shall not be responsible for
any loss, damage, liability or claim ansing, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or failure in performance
of any of its obligaticns hereunder which is caused by incorrect payment instructions andfor due to any event
beyond the conirol of tha Company.




The e-dividend mandate form is also available on the Company’s website: www.habibsugar.com
8. Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividend and Share Certificates:

Shareholders whao could not collect their dividend /physical shares are advised to contact Shara Raegistrar or our
Registered Office to enquire and collect their unclaimed dividend/shares, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of
the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such unclaimed dividend and
shares for a period of 3 years ar more from the date it is due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of Federal

Government in ¢ase of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be delivered to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

9. Transmission of Financial Statements & Notices through email

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECF) through its Notification 8.R.0. 787(1)/2014 dated
September 8, 2014 has permitted companies to circulate Audited Financial Statements along with Motice of Annual
Genaral Meating to its members through e-mail. Accordingly, members are requested lo send their consent and a-
mail addresses for receiving Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail. In order to avail this facility,
astandard request form is avallable at the Company's website.

Company Address: Share Registrar Address:

Habib Sugar Mills Limited THK Associates (Pvi.) Limited

3rd Floor, Imperial Court 15t Floor, 40-C, Block-8, P.E.C.H.5., Karachi-75400
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi-75530 LAN : (021)111-000-322,

Phones : (+92-21) 35680036 — 5 Linas Fax : (021)34168271

Faox : (+92-21) 35684086 e.mail: secrelanal @ hk.com.pk

@-mail : companysacretary & habibsugar.com




Six years'review ata glance

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Sugar Division
Sugarcane crushed M.Tons 1028901 865530 821801 854231 1116554 939,959
Average sucrose recovery %, 10.30 9.497 10.74 10.40 10.44 11.02
Sugar produced M. Tans 106,005 86,316 88,271 88,807 116,513 103,582
Distillery Division
Ethanol
Molasses processed M. Tans 184654 182774 175538 163846 176226 173497
Average ethanol yield % 18.76 18.43 1813 18.73 18.59 17.56
Ethanal produced M. Tons 34,643 33,687 3,817 30,681 32,768 30,464
Liquid Carbon dioxide (Co2)Produced M. Tons 9,903 11,068 10,104 9,230 8,436 7,584
Textile Division
Yam / Semi finished goods consumed Kgs 1,074,066 584,310 650,802 890,831 983,143 1,100,321
Average yield % B6.45 8818 8576 8458 8495 86.23
Finished product Kgs 928,557 515253 558,194 753,449 835210 948812
Operating results (Restated)
Sales / Rental income Rz '000 7,758,520 7,134,930 8,517,094 8197388 5,050916 8,812,008
Cost of sales As. ‘000 6,464,368 6,544,700 7499710 7222203 7,083,079 7,606,639
Gross profit Rs.'000 1,274,152 590,140 1,017,384 975,005 1,067,837 1,205459
Profit before taxation Rs. ‘000 958,776 497417 970962 970,230 922081 933,951
Profit after taxation Rs. '000 801,276  B5T.417  B24962 815230 797081 778951
Shareholders' Equity
Faid-up capital Rs. '000 750000 750,000 750,000 750,000 750,000 750,000
Reserves Rs.'000 7353970 6,233,335 5781437 5110222 4699252 38827687
Shareholders' equity Rs. '000 8,103,970 6,983,335 6,531,437 5,860,222 5449252 4,632,767
Break-up value per share RAs. '000 54.03 46.56 43.54 39.07 36.33 30.89
Adjusted eamings per share - Restated * Hs. ‘000 6.01 3.72 5.50 543 5.3 5.19
Return on equity % 11.12 7.98 12.63 13.91 14.63 16.81
Financial position - Assets
Fixed assets - Restated* Rs.'000 2645188 2692170 2161885 1542980 1,353,601 959,820
Long-term investments As '000 2948619 2403085 2025968 1,711,138 1451587 999868
Long-term loans and deposits Rs. 000 8,727 10,598 8,139 6,975 8,354 5,852
Current assets - Restated" Rs.'000 4857577 4,036,776 4428078 4609485 4,167348 389188926
Total assets Rs.'000 10,460,111 9142600 8624071 7870576 6,980,891 5884 486
Financial position - Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities Rs. 000 B, 000 98,500 104,000 102,000 90,000 75,000
Current liabilties Rs.'000 2270141 2,060,774 1,988,634 15908354 1441638 1,176,719
Total liabilitias Rs.'000 2,356,141 2,159,274 2,092,634 2,010,354 1,531,639 1,251,719
Ratlos
Current ratio 2.14 1.96 2.23 2.42 2.89 3.33
Dividends
Cash % 55 35 55 50 50 50
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Chairman’s Report

Review Report by Chairman on Board's overall Performance under section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2017

Habib Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act,
2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (CCG) with respect
to the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.

The performance of the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company during the year remained
salisfactory. The Board is govemed by the statute and Company's Aricles and its duties, obligations,
responsibilities and rights are as defined and prescribed therein.

During the financial year 2017-18 the Board met four (4) times. The Board is complied with all the
regulatory requirements and acted in accordance with applicable laws and best practices.

As required under the CCG an annual evaluation of the Board of the Company was carried out. The
purpose of this evaluation was to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is
measured and benchmarked against expectations inthe context of objectives set for the Company.

Following would be the integral components on which the performance of the Board was evaluated :

The Board ensured adeguate representation of non-executive and independent directors on the Board and
its Committees as required under the CCG. The members of the Board and its respective Committees
possess adequate skills, experience and ability required to perform their responsibilities.

The Board has actively participated in strategic planning, risk management and policy development and
ensured integration of all policies and convergence to company’s vision and mission. The Board also sets
annual budgets, targets and goals for the management.

The Board and its Committees have diligently parformed their duties and remained updated with respectto
achievement of Company's objectives, goals, strategies and financial performance through regular
presentations by the management. The Board held extensive and fruitful discussions to arrive at decisions
and appropriate direction and oversight is provided to the management on timely basis. Areas where
improvements are required are duly considered and action plans are framed and implemented.

The Board has developed an environment of robust and transparent system of Governance by setting up
an adequate and effective internal control system through self-assessment mechanism and internal audit
activities. Further, the Board ensured compliance with best practices of corporate governance.

Lastly, | would like to acknowledge the commitment and diligence of my fellow directors, the executive
team and all the employees of the Company for their hard work and contribution towards the growth of the

Company.

Asghar D. Habib
Karachi: December 28, 2018 Chairman

1




Directors’ Report

Dear Members — Assalam-o-Alekum

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to welcome you all to the 57" Annual General Meeting
of the Company and present before you the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the
Company forthe year ended September 30, 2018.

By the Grace of Allah, during the year under review, the operations of your Company resulted in after-tax

profit of Rs. 901.28 million. The operating results and appropriations as recommended by the Board are
given below:

(Rupees in thousands)

Profit after taxation 901,276
Adjustment of Other Comprehensive Income (390}
Unappropriated profit brought forward 2,395
2,005

Profit available for appropriation 903,281

Proposed — Cash Dividend @ 55% i.e. Rs.2.75 per ordinary

share of Rs.5/- each 412,500

— Transfer to general reserve 485,000

897,500

Unappropriated profit carried forward 5,781
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted Rs. 6.01

Performance Review
Division-wise performance of the Company is as follows :

Sugar Division

The crushing season 2017-18 commenced on November 29, 2017 and plant operated upto April 17, 2018.
During the crushing season 1,028,901 M. Tons of sugarcane was crushed with average sucrose recovery
of 10.30 % and sugar production of 106,005 M.Tons as compared with crushing of 865,530 M. Tons with
average sucrose recovery of 9.97 % and sugar production of 86,316 M. Tons during the preceding season.

The Government of Sindh on December 5, 2017 issued nofification fixing the minimum support price of
sugarcane for crushing season 2017-18 at Rs. 182 per 40 kgs, same as it was fixed for the crushing season
2016-17. In addition, mills would be required to pay guality premium at the rate of paisas fifty for every 0.1
percent recovery in excess of the bench mark of 8.7%. However, in accordance with the notification, while
the matter is still pending with the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan and as per the decision of the
Federal Government Steering Committee, the quality premium shall remain suspended till the decision of
the Honourable Supreme Court or the consensus on uniform formula developed by the Federal
Government.
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The minimum sugarcane support price fixed by the Sindh government at Rs. 182/40 kgs was not justified in
relation to the prevailing sugar price both in domestic and international markets. Your company along with
other sugar mills filed a petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh praying that the minimum support
price fixed by the Sindh government was totally arbitrary and unjustified as it would result in financial
catastrophe and economic disaster to the sugar industry in the Province of Sindh.

On December 22, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh passed an interim order and directed sugar mills
to make payment to growers at the rate of Rs. 172/40 kgs w.e.f. December 23, 2017 and also fumish
security acceptable to the Nazir of the Court within three weeks from the date on which the order would
takes effect for the differential amount (i.e. Rs.10/40kg) to be calculated on the basis of the sugarcane
quantum crushed during the crushing season 2016-17. Against the above order, sugar mills filed a review
petition befora the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh.

On January 30, 2018, the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh, with the consent of all the stakeholders announced
inthe open court that without prejudice to any right or claim of the parties, and subject to final decision of the
Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan in the aforesaid cases and the decision by this court in the instant
petitions, the mills will purchase the sugarcane @ Rs. 160/ 40kg from the growers far the crushing season
2017-18. The interim order was binding on all the stakeholders, i.e. growers, millers and Governmeant of
Sindh.

Considering surplus sugar stock in the country, the Economic Co-ordination Committee of the Cabinet
(ECC) allowed export of 1,500,000 M. Tons of sugar with export subsidy of Rs.10.70/kg on a sliding scale
which was to be shared equally by the federal govemment and provincial government. In addition to the
above, the Government of Sindh announced additional export subsidy of Rs. 9.30/kg for the Sindh sugar
mills on export of 500,000 M. Tons of sugar with a maximum quantity of 20,000 M. tons per mill. Out of total
permission of 1,500,000 M. Tons, your company was able to export 18,830 M. Tons of sugar. The export
subsidy announced by the Sindh government was received and accounted for in the preparation of the
financial statements, however, export subsidy announced by the federal government has not been
released yet and therefore will be accounted for on actual receipt basis.

The comparative statistics of the division's operations are given below :

2017-18 2018-17
Crushing duration Days 140 128
Sugarcane crushed M.Taons 1,028,901 865,530
Average sucrose recovery Yo 10.30 8.97
Sugar production M. Tons 106,005 86,316

Due to excessive availability of sugar, the sugar prices both in domestic and international markets
remained depressed and despite subsidy announced and paid by the Sindh Government, the profitability
of the sugar division was adversely affected and earned profit of Rs. 4.18 million as compared with loss of
Rs. 110.96 million during the previous year.

Distillery Division

During the year, the performance of the distillery division Alhamdolillah remained quite satisfactory and the
division eamed operating profit of Rs. 875.37 million as compared with profit of Rs. 362.58 million during
the previous year. The notable increase in the profit of the division is due to higher sales volume, better sale
price on account of appreciation of dollar against Pak rupee and lower cost of production during the period
ascompared to the previous year.

The liquidified carbon dioxide (CO2) unit produced 9,903 M.Tons as compared with 11,069 M. Tons during
the pravious year. The operating profit of the unit is included in the profit of the division.
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The Comparative statistics of the division’s operations are given below :

2017-18 2016-17
Ethanol
Days of operation 335 344
Molasses processed M.Tons 184,654 182,774
Ethanol production “ 34,643 33,687
Liquidified Carbon dioxide (CO2)
Days of operation 248 277
Liguidified Carbon dioxide {CO2) production * 9,903 11,068

Textile Division

The Textile division earned operating profit of Rs. 24.80 million as compared with loss of Rs. 1.24 million
during the previous year. The increase in division's profit was due to higher sales volume, rupee
depreciation against international currencies and rebate announced by the government on textile exports.

The comparative statistics of the division's operations are given below :

201718 2016-17
Days of operation 300 300
Yarn consumed Kgs 1,074,066 584,310
Finished goods production “ 928,557 515,253

Trading Division

During the year under review, the division suffered loss of Rs. 58.86 miillion on account of sale of carry over
trading stock of sugar as against operating profit of Rs. 6.56 million during the previous year. The loss
suffered by the division is due to the drastic reduction in sugar prices.

Future Prospects
Sugar Division

The sugar division of the Company commenced crushing campaign on Maovember 289, 2018 and upto
December 25, 2018 crushed 133,791 M.Tons of sugarcane with average sucrose recovery of 9.83 % and
sugar production of 13,765 M.Tons including stock in process.

The Government of Sindh on December 7, 2018 issued a nofification fixing the minimum sugarcane
support price at Rs.182 par 40 kgs for the crushing season 2018 — 19. Your company along with other
sugar mills filed a petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh praying that the minimum support
price fixed by the Sindh government was totally arbitrary and unjustified as it would result in financial
calastrophe and economic disaster to the sugar industry in the Province of Sindh. In this respect, notices
were issued to the respondents and hearing is fixed for December 18, 2018.

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan decided the appeals in respect of quality premium for the
crushing season 1998-99 filed by certain sugar mills (excluding our company as the sucrose recovery was
below the bench mark of 8.7%) and has confirmed that the Quality Premium is payable by the industry.

In December 2018, after reviewing the sugar stock position in the country the ECC allowed export of 1.10
million tons of sugar.

Inview of the scarcity of water in the Sindh province, we expect lessor availability of sugarcane which might
cause unhealthy competition amongst sugar mills for procurement of sugarcane.
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Distillery Division

During the period upto December 25, 2018 the distillery division produced 6,502 M.Tons of ethanol and
1,754 M.Tons of liquidified carbon dioxide. The increase in molasses price was likely to affect the
profitability of the division.

Textile Division

Efforts are being made to explore additional export markets to achieve better sale volume and to maintain
profitability.

Investment in Bagasse Based Co-Generation Project of 26.5 MW

The Company initiated a Bagasse based High Pressure Co-generation project and formed HSM Energy
limited (HSMEL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Upto September 30, 2018 the company had
invested Rs. 50.0 million. Presently, the above project is on hold due to non-clarity on the part of the
Government for bagasse based energy projects. Central Power Purchasing Agency (CPPA) filed a review
petition before Mational Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) disputing the tariff awarded to
bagasse based projects and mechanism prescribed for purchased of electricity. NEPRA has dismissed
review petition filed by CPPA for purchasing power from producers on take and pay basis. CPPA has now
filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Islamabad which is pending adjudication. The outcome of
the above case is crucial for the future of these projects. The management is reviewing the situation and
future course of action would be decided upon the outcome of the pending case. We strongly believe that
this source of indigenous power would be critical for Pakistan and for the future growth of the sugar
industry. We look forward to more investor friendly policy from the government on this issue.

Investment in Wind Power Project

The shareholders of the Company approved investment of upto Rs.450 million in Uni Energy Limited,
formerly associated unlisted public company incorperated to undertake business activities related to
generation and transmission of electric power generation through wind.

The Company made initial equity investment of Rs.12.50 million. Government of Sindh had granted Letter
of Intent (LOI) and allotted land for setting up the project at Jhimpir, district Thatta. Presently, the
government was set to be reviewing the Basis of Tariff determination and mechanism for purchase of
energy from wind projects. The future course of action would be decided upon clarification from the
government.

Investment in Food Business

In line with the Company's Vision of diversification, the company upto September 30, 2018 has invested
Rs. 108.0 million in Uni-Food Industries Limited, a public unlisted company. The core business of the
Company is to manufacture and brand confectionary items and other allied products. The Company
started its commercial praduction in March 2018. Presently, the company is facing immense competition
and marketing challenges from the existing manufacturers, however, vigorous efforts are being made by
the management of the company to achieve increasein sale volume and reduce cost.

Board and Management Committees
Audit Committee

The Company has established Audit Committee as required under the Code of Corporate Govermance
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(Revised). The Audit Committee comprises of three members, two of whom are non-executive directors
including the Chairman of the Committee and cne is independent non-executive director, The Audit
Commitlee met four times during the year, Attendance of meetings is as follows:

No. of meetings

attended
Mr. Amin Ali Abdul Hamid Chairman 4
*  AliRazaD. Habib Member 3
Shams Mohammad Haji Membear 4

HR and Remuneration Committee

The Company has established HR and Remuneration Committee as required under the Code of Corporate
Governance. The HR and Remuneration Committee comprises of three members, two of whom are non-
axecutive directors. The CEO is also member of the Committes. The Chairman of the Committes is
independent non-executive director. The HR and Remuneration Committee met once during the year.
Attendance of meeting is as follows:

No. of meeting

attended
Mr. Shams Mohammad Haji Chairman 1
“  Amin Ali Abdul Hamid Member 1
*  RaeesulHasan Member 1

Corporate Social Responsibility

Habib Sugar Mills Limited Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programme dates back since its
inception in 1962. Responding to the needs of local communities, government bodies and civil society
organizations, the Company's CSR portfolio has widened over the years to include social welfare,
education, healthcare, infrastructural development and livelihood generation.

Community Investment and Welfare Scheme

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company has, on regular basis, undertaken number of welfare
activities viz., running of schoal upto secondary level, holding of eye camp, financial assistance to villagers
in the surrounding area of the mills and supply of free ration and medical assistance and educational
support to the needy persons. The contribution of the Company in the social and economic uplift of the
district has been acknowledged atall levels.

During the year, the company continued its support to Family Education Services Foundation (FESF), a
non-profitable organization, to run a deaf school at Nawabshah. Your Company has donated Rs. 12.0
million during the year. At present, over 175 students are enrolled in the school. The campus is the first ever
educational facility of its kind for the deaf in Nawabshah and will enable deaf students to receive education
In an environment that maximizes their potentials and enhances their quality of life.

During the year, the Company also donated Rs. 4.0 million to different recognized charitable institutions
which are providing education and financial support to the needy persons and establishing positive social
trends in society. In addition, Company also contributed Rs. 5.0 million towards the construction of Diamer
Bhasha Dam.

Environment

The management of HSML believe that protection of environment is important for survival of every person
as such company attaches uimost importance to provide healthy atmosphere to its employees and
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residents of Nawabshah. Accordingly, number of appropriate steps has been taken by the company to
ensure pollution free enviranment.

The fly ash removal systems installed in the boilers of the mills continue to operate satisfactorily and the
spread of black soot particles has been completely eliminated. The Company has installed a sugar factory
waste water treatment plant to remove oil, grease, total suspended solids, from the waste water. The
project has since been completed yielding satisfactory results. Similarly brick lining of the lagoons and
replacement of open drain channels with RCC piping have been done to avoid seepage thereby not
affecting the water table of the surrounding areas.

The installation of bio-gas plant and carbon dioxide recovery plants are the manifestation of our social
responsibility which has helped us to reduce the greenhouse gases emission from our distillery operations.
The Company also installed industrial waste water treatment plant based upon Upflow Anaerobic Sludge
Bed (UASB) system with energy recovery in the form of biogas.

By the grace of Allah, the successful operations of these projects have ensured a pollution free
environment for the people of Nawabshah.

Health, Safety and Security

Being a responsible corporate entity, the Company is fully committed to meet all the standards with respect
to health, safety and security. The Company also contributes on regular basis towards the medical needs
and assistance of the people in the surrounding areas, by giving donations to clinics and welfare
institutions for medical and other facilities.

Employment of Special Persons

The Company has provided employment to physically handicapped persons in compliance with the
Disabled Persans (Employment & Rehabilitation) Ordinance, 1981,

Industrial Relations

Harmonious working environment and cordial industrial relations atmosphere prevailed within the
Company.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

Your Company contributed an amount of Rs. 567.58 million to the Government treasury in the shape of
taxes, levies, sales-tax and excise duty in addition to precious foreign exchange earned, equivalent to Pak
Rupees 3,537.87 million (US$ 29.62 million) during the year under review from exports of sugar, ethanol
and household textiles.

Auditors

The auditors Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible has offered
themselves for re-appointment.

The Audit Committee has recommended to consider the re-appointment of Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes,
Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

Applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 (The Act)

The Companies Act 2017, (The Act) was promulgated on May 30, 2017, however, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide circular No. 23 of 2017 dated October 04, 2017 relaxed
the applicability for the companies whose financial year closed on or before December 31, 2017. The Act
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became applicable far the financial year under review and brought certain changes for the preparation of
financial statements as prescribed under Fourth Schedule of the Act.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

1.

10.

11.

The financial statements, prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements. Changes, if any have been adequately disclosed and accounting estimates are based
onreasonable and prudent judgment.

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
the financial statements and deviation there from if any, has been adequately disclosed.

The system of intemal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
manitored regularly.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn,

There has been no material departure from the best practices of the corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating and financial data for last six years in surnmarized formis given on page 10.
Information about the taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.

Value of investments including profit accrued thereon and balances in deposit / current accounts of
Provident Fund and Gratuity Fund as at September 30, 2018 were as follows:

Rs.'000
Provident Fund 292175
Gratuity Fund 106,628
During the year four meetings were held and the attendance by each Director was as follows :
Name of Director Number of meetings
Attended
Mr. Asghar D. Habib 4
“ AliRazaD.Habib 3
* Muhammad Nawaz Tishna 4
" MurtazaH. Habib 4
“ Amin Ali Abdul Hamid 4
* Bhams Mohammad Haji 4
“ Munawar A. Habib* 1
*  Faroug Habib Rahimtoola®™ ;I1

Raeesul Hasan

"resigned on July 24, 2018
**Co-opted onJuly 24, 2018

12. The pattern of sharehalding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is given an
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13. Change in shareheolding of the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and
minor children is given in Pattern of Shareholding on Page 116.

Change in Directors

During the year Mr. Munawar A. Habib resigned fromn the Board and in his place Mr. Faroug Habib
Rahimtoola was co-opted.

General

The directors place on record their appreciation of the devoted services and hard work put in by the officers,
staff and workers of the Company and to thank all the financial institutions having business relationship
with us and our satisfied customers for their continued support and cooperation.

On behalf of the Board of Directars

kel e

Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Executive Director

Karachi: December 26, 2018
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

Year ended September 30,2018

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total numbers of Directors are Eight (8) as per the following:

a. Male: Eight (8)
b. Fernale: None

The Composition of the Board is as follows:

a. Independent Directors Mr. Shams Mohammad Haji
Mr. Faroog Habib Rahimtoola  (Co-opted on
July 24, 2018)

b. Other Non-Executive Direclors Mr. Asghar D. Habib
Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib
Mr. Muhammad Nawaz Tishna
Mr. Arnin Ali Abdul Hamid

c. Executive Directors Mr. Murtaza H. Habib
Mr. Raeesul Hasan

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures,

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board / Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company consist of eight (8) directors, out of which following four (4)
directors are certified under the Directors Training Program:

- Mr. Asghar D. Habib

- Mr. Murtaza H. Habib

- Mr. Amin Ali Abdul Hamid

- Mr. Shams Mohammad Haji
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10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed Gommittees comprising of members given below:
Audit Committee HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Amin Ali Abdul Hamid (Chairman) Mr. Shams Mohammad Haji (Chairman)
Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib Mr. Amin Ali Abdul Hamid
Mr. Shams Mohammad Haji Mr. Raeesul Hasan

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/halfyearly/yearly) of the committees were as perfollowing :

a. Auditcommittee: four (4) meetings held during the year ended September 30, 2018
b. HR and Remuneration committee: one (1) meeting held during the year ended September 30,

2018

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function supervised by a Chartered Accountant who is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the pariners of the firm, their
spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Pl T

Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Executive Director

Karachi: December 26, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Habib sugar mills Limited (the company)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed statements of compliance with the listed companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Habib Sugar Mills
Limited for the year ended 30 September 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. we are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on intermal cantrol
covers all risks and cantrols or to farm an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies
Act,2017.we are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the relaled parly transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the

requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 September
2018.

7Y SN

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date : 26 December, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Tothe members of Habib Sugar Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsoclidated financial statements of Habib Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September 2018, and
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
staternent of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the unconsclidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting peolicies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at 30 September 2018 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Unconsclidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Existence and valuation of Stock-in-trade

As disclosed in note 7 to the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements, the stock-intrade balance constitutes
26.4% of total assets of the Company. The cost of finished
goods is determined at average cost including a proportion of
production overheads.

The obsolescence is calculated by taking into account the Net
Realisable Value {(MRV) of related stock-in-trade while mainly
keeping in view the estimated selling price and forecasted sales
volume,

We have considered this area to be a key audit matter due to its
materiality and judgments involved in estimating the NRV of
underlying stock-in-trade as well as the management judgment
in determining an appropriate costing basis and assessing its
valuation.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, reviewing the
management's procedures for evaluating the NRY of stock-in-
trade, observing physical stock counts to ascertain the
condition and existence of stock-intrade and performing
testing on a sample of items to assess the NRV of the stock-in-
trade held and evaluating the adequacy of allowance of write
down of stock-in-trade to NRY as at the year end.

Further, we evaluated the appropriateness of the basis of
identification of the obsolete stock-in-trade and the accuracy of
allowance of write down of inventaries to MRV assessead by the
management, on a sample basis.

We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of stock-in-trade,
on a sample basis and cost of goods with underlying invoices
and expenses incurred in accordance with the valuafion
methods.

We also tested the calculations of per unit cost of finished
goods and WIP and assessed the appropriateness of
management’s basis for the allocation of cost and production
overheads.

We further tested the NRV of stock-in-trade by performing a
review of sales close to and subsequent fo the year-end and
compared with the cost, for a sample of products.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in
respect of the accounting policies and detailed disclosure in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

2.

Preparation of unconsoclidated financial statements under Companies Act, 2017

As refarred to in note 1.2 to the accompanying unconsclidated
financial stalements, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Acl)
became applicable for the first time for the preparation of the
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2018.

The Act forms an integral par of the statutory financial reporting
framework as applicable to the Company and amongst others,
prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to
various elements of the unconsolidated financial statements.

In the case of the Company, a summary of key additional
disclosures and changes to the existing disclosures have been
stated in note 2.1 to the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements.

The above changes and enhancements in the unconsolidated
financial statements are considered impartant and a key audit
matter because of the volume and significance of the changes
in the unconsolidated financial statements resulting from the
transition to the new reaparting requirements under the Act.

We assessed the procedures applied by the management for
identification of the changes required in the unconsolidated
financial statements due fo the application of the Act. We
considered the adequacy and appropriateness of the additional
disclosures and changes to the previous disclosures based on
the new requirements. We also evaluated the sources of
information used by the management for the preparation of the
above referred disclosures and the intemal consistency of such
disclosures with other elements of the unconsolidated financial
statements.
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L]
Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does notinclude the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon,

Qur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other informalion and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statemants or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for
such interal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud orermor.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management aither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but fo do sa.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always defect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
rasulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal
control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclugions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, fulure events or condilions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the unconsclidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
indepandance, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these maters in
our auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reagonably be expected to gutweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report thatin our opinion;
a) properbooks of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsclidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement
of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn upin conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017)
and arein agreement with the books of account and retums;

c) invesiments made, expenditure incurred and guarantess extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s
buginess; and

d) zakatdeductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVI1| of 1580), was deducted by the Company and
depositedin the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independentauditors’ report is Shaikh Ahmed Salman.,

S7AEY SN

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 26 December, 2018
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at September 30, 2018

Assels
Non-Current Assets

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment
Long-term investments
Long-term loans
Long-term deposits

Current Assets

Stores and spare parts

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Profit accrued on bank deposits

Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital and Reserves

Share Capital
Authorised
150,000,000 (2017: 150,000,000) Ordinary
shares of Rs.5 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Reserves

MNon-Current Liabilities
Deferred taxation

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Advance from customers
Unclaimed dividends

Contingencies and Commitments
Total Equity and Liabilities

Amir Bashir Ahmed
Chief Financial Officer

MNote

L A |

oW oo~ ;m

12

13
14

15

16

17

Raeesul Hasan
Chief Executive

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

2,645,188
2,948,619
4,799
3,928

5,602,534

162,734
2,764,095
511,542
390,470
8,517
2,741
128,283
121,320
766,875

2,692,170
2,403,065
6,570
4,028

5,105,833

4:35? pﬁ??

70,460,111

750,000

750,000

7,353,970

8,103,970
86,000

1,500,164
702,369
67,608
2,270,141

10,460,111

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

115,735
1,673,612
254,380
803,432
5,749
1,551
151,819
98,202
924,206

4,036,776

8,142,609

750,000

780,000

6,233,335

6,883,335
98,500

1,309,371
691,920
58,483
2,080,774

9,142,609

Murtaza H. Habib

27




Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or loss
for the year ended September 30, 2018

MNote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Met sales and services 18 7,758,520 7,134,930
Cost of sales 19 6,484 268 6,544,790
Gross Profit 1,274,152 590,140
Selling and distribution expenses 20 (252,147) (175,440)
Administrative expenses 21 (176,524) (157,764)
Other operating expenses 22 (56,883) (32,054)
Impairment on long-term investments - available for sale {45,445) - -
Other income 23 162,419 246,099
(368,580) (119,159)
Operating Profit 805,572 470,981
Finance income - net 24 53,204 26,436
Profit before taxation 958,776 497 417
Taxation 25 {57,500) 60,000
Profit after taxation 901,276 557,417
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 26 6.01 3.72

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

. E—— @_4_ g . ﬁf’*"

"Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended September 30, 2018

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may not be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit or loss :

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan - net

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit or loss :

Unrealised gain on revaluation of investments during the year
Reclassification adjustmants included in

the statement of profit or loss for:
Gain on sale of investments - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

—\—',:v‘\* @_J_L@_

'Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

901,276

(390)

900,886

483,120

(871)

557,417

{275)

557,142

482,249

1,383,135

421,237

(113,981)

307,256

864,398

Murtaza H. Habib
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended September 30, 2018

Balance as on October 1, 2016

Cash dividend for the year endad
September 30, 2016 @ 55%

Transfer to general resenve

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Taotal comprehensive income for the year
ended September 30, 2017

Balance as on September 30, 2017

Cash dividend for the year ended
September 30, 2017 @ 35%

Transler to general reserve

Proiit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
anded September 30, 2018

Balance as on September 30, 2018

Revenue Reserves
lssued, Unrealised
subscriped gain on
and Unappra-  investments
paid-up Capital General priated  available Total Total
Capital Reserve  Reserve profit forsdle  Heserves  Equity
(Rupees in thousands)
750,000 34000 3466000  B27,753 1453684 5781437 6531437
{412,500 (412,500) (412,500
412500 (412,500
557 417 . BR7417| | 557417
(275] | 307,256| | 306.981| | 306981
557,142 307256 864398  BG4.398
750,000 34,000 3878500 559,895 1,760,940 6,233,335 6983335
(262,500) (262,500)  (262,500)
295000 (295,000
901,276 . 901,278| | 901,278
(390] | 482,249| | 481,859| | 481859
900,886 482,249 1383135 1,383,135
750,000 34,000 4,173,500 903281 22437189 7353970 8103970

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

L

‘Amir Bashir Ahmed

Chief Financial Officer

o,

aeesul Hasan
Chief Executive

Murtaza H. Habib

o1 T

Director



Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended September 30, 2018

MNote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 27
Finance income received - net

Income tax paid

Long-term loans

Long-term deposits

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (1,698,546)
Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure (731,469

Redemption / sale proceeds of investments 207,170

Dividend received . 126,266

FPurchase of investments \ (163,030

Sale proceeds of fixed assets 12,549

Met cash used in investing activities (205,594) (548,514)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid (254,375) (404,010)
Met cash used in financing activities {254,375) {404,010)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents © (157,331) "~ (2,651,070)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 824,206 3,575,276
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 T 766,875 T 924,206

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

e Ll .

'Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Exscutive Director
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended September 30,2018

1.

1.1

1.2

The Company and its operations

Habib Sugar Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan, with its shares quoted
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and
marketing of refined sugar, ethanal, liquidified carbon dioxide (CO2), household textiles, providing
bulk storage facilities and trading of commadities.

These are separate unconsolidated financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest.

Business Units
Registered office - 3rd Floor, Imperial Court Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

Mills / Factory - Sugar and Distillery plants are located at District Shaheed Benazirabad, Nawabshah
and Textile Division is located at D-140/B-1, Manghopir Road, 5.1.T.E. Karachi.

Terminal - 80/1-B, Qil Installation Area, Keamari, Karachi.

Summary of significant transactions and events that have affected Company’s financial
position and performance during the year:

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), became applicable to the Company from the current year and
brought certain changes with regards to the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the Company made further investment in HSM Energy Limited — wholly owned
subsidiary amounting to Rs. 49.9 million and in Unifoods Industries Limited — related party amounting
to Rs. 62 million.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (|ASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies, Act 2017 (the Act),
provisions of and directives issued under the Act. In case requirements differ, the provisions or
directives under the Act shall prevail.

The Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Company for the first time
for the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017
(including its Fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework
applicable to the Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in
relation to various elements of the financial statements. Additional disclosures include but are not
limited to, particulars of immovable assets of the Company (refer note 3.1.2), management
assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the financial statements (refer note 25.3), change in
threshold for identification of executives (refer notes 5 & 28), additional disclosure requirements for
related parties (refer note 33) etc.
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Basis of preparation

“These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention,
except for:

. staff retirement benefit plan which is caried at present value of defined benefit obligation net of
fairvalue of plan assets as prescribed in |1AS 19 "Employees Benefits”. and”

. investments which have been recognised at fair value in accordance with the requirements of
IAS-39"Financial Instruments: Reacognition and Measurement”.

Significant accounting jJudgements and estimates

The preparation of unconsclidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised andin
any future periods affected,

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates
and judgements which are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements:

a Determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 2.7.1);
b Classification and valuation of investments (Note 2.8);

C Impairment / adjustment of inventories to their net realizable value (Note 2.9 & 2.10);

Accounting for staff retirement benefits (Note 2.13);
a Recognitidn of taxation and deferred tax (Note 2.16);
fy  Contingencies and commitments (Note 17).

Amended /revised standards that became effective

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the
following standards which became effective for the current year:

IAS 7 = Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)
IAS 12 - Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations
did not have any material effect on these unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective

Following standards and amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standards:

Effective date ‘accou nting periods

beginning on or after)
IFRS 2 —-Share Baged Payments — Classification and Measurement January1,2018
of Share Based Payments Transactions (Amendments)
IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January1,2018
with IFRS 4 (Amend menta];
IFRS 8 — Financial Instruments July 1, 2018

IFRS 9 — Prepayment Featuras with Negative Compensation - (Amendments) January 1,2019

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investor and its Associate or Joint venture Contracts -
(Amendments) Mot yet finalised

IFRS 15-Revenue from Contracts with Customers July1,2018
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2.7
2.71

IFRS 16 -Leases January1,2019
IAS19 -Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - {Amendments) January1, 2019
IAS 28 -Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - (Amendments)January 1, 2019

IAS 40 — Transfer of Investment Property (Amendments) January 1,2018
IFRIC 22— Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 1, 2018
IFRIC 23— Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments January 1,2019

In May 2014, the |IASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers which will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, however, early application is
permitted. SECP vide §.R.0. 007( 1)/2017 dated October 4, 2017, has also notified the adoption of
IFRS 15 for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

According to the new standard, revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when, or as, the
customer obtains control of the goods or services. IFRS 15 also includes guidance on the
presentation of contract balances, that is, assets and liabilities arising from contracts with customers,
depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. IFRS
156 supersedes IAS 11, Construction Contracts and 1AS 18, Revenue as well as related
interpretations. Currently, it is expected that the changes, if any, in the total amount of revenue to be
recognized for a customer contract will be very limited. Besides, changes to the Statement of
Financial Position are expected, e.g. separate line items for contract assets and contract liabilities
are required, and qualitative disclosures are added. Hence, the Company does not expect significant
impacts on its unconsolidated Financial Statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the |ASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019, respectively. The Company
expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

Standards issued by IASB but not yet notified by SECP

Following new standards have been issued by IASE which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

IASB Effective date (accounting periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1,2016
IFRS 17 =Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization /impairment (if any), except for
freehold land.

Depreciation is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use
and on disposals up to the month the asset is in use. Assets residual values and useful lives are



2.7.2
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2.8

2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8

reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate at each date of the unconsolidated statement of financial
position date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and
when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefit is expected from its use. Gain or loss on disposal of assets is included in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss inthe year the assets is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. ltems are transferred to the
respective assets when available for intended use.

Significant borrowing costs related to acquisition, construction and commissioning of a qualifying
asset are capitalised.

Major stores and spare parts

Major stores and spare parts qualify for recognition as property, plant and equipment when the
Company expects to use these for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating
fixed assets category as and when such items are issued foruse.

Major stores and spare parts are valued at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Investments

Investments acquired with the intention to be held for over one year are classified as long term
investments. However, these can be sold earlier due to liguidity requirements. Short term
investments are those which are acquired for a short period.

Investments are classified as follows:

Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary are stated at costless impairment loss, if any.

Available for sale
Quoted
Available for sale investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration

paid including transaction cost. Subsequent toinitial recognition, these investments are re-measured
atfairvalue (quoted market price).

Any gain or loss from a change in the fair value of investments available for sale is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income as unrealised, unless sold, collected or otherwise disposed off, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time cumulative gain or loss previously
taken to other comprehensive income is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
ofthe year.

Un-Quoted
These investment are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Stores and spare parts

These are valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realisable value except for items in
transit which are valued atcost. Provision is made for obsolescence and slow moving items.
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Stock-in-trade

These are valued as follows :

Raw materials Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
Waork-in-process Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
Finished goods Atthe lower of average cost and netrealisable value
Fertilizers Atthe lower of cost on FIFO basis and net realisable value
Bagasse Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are recognised and carried at original inveoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. Other receivables are carried at cost less estimates made for doubdtful
receivables.

An estimate for doubtful trade debts and other receivables is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes
of the statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, with banks on
current, savings, treasury call and deposit accounts, net of short term borrowings under mark-up
arrangements, if any.

Staff retirement benefits

Staff gratuity

The Company operates an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all permanent employees,
Minimum qualifying period for entitlterment to gratuity is five years continuous service with the
Company. The scheme is funded and contributions to the fund are made in accordance with the
recammendations of the actuary.

The latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity scheme was carried out as at September 30, 2018, The
projected unit credit method, using the following significant assumptions, have been used for
actuarial valuation.

Discount rate 10.00% perannum
Expected rate of increase in salaries 9.75% perannum

Based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme as of September 30, 2018, the fair value of
gratuity scheme assets and present value of liabilities were Rs.106.63 million and Rs.107.02 million
respectively. The Company recognises the total actuarial gains and losses in the year in which they
arise. The amounts recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)

Net Employee Defined Benefit Asset

Present value of defined benefit obligation 107,017 101,748
Fair value of plan assets (106,627) {101,472)
Liability recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position 380 276




Charge for the year
Salaries, wages and amenities include the following in respect of

employees' gratuity fund:

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

Current service cost 3,896 3,641
Interest cost 7,721 7,389
Expected retumn on plan assets (7,700) (7,378)
3,917 3,851
The movement in present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 101,748 101,745
Current sarvice cost 3,896 3641
Interest Cost 7,720 7,389
Benefits paid (4,543) {11,390)
Actuarial (gain) / loss (1,804) 363
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 107,017 101,748
The movement in fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 101 472 101,589
Expected retum on assets 7,700 7,379
Contributions 4,192 3,796
Benefits paid (4,543) (11,380}
Actuarial {loss) / gain (2.184) 88
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 106,627 101,472
Actual return on plan assets 5,506 7,467
Plan assets comprise:
Term deposit receipts 99,000 85,000
Term Finance Certificates 259 263
Balance with Banks 6,987 15,844
Accruad interast 381 365
106,627 101,472

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit

of gratuity fund is as follows:

As at September 30, 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
{Rupees in thousands)

Prasent value of defined bensfit obligation 107,017 101,748 101,745 92,164 83,898

Fair value of plan assets (106,627) (101,472) (101,599) (92,336) (B83,638)

(Surplus) / deficit 380 276 146 (172) 260

Experience adjustmeanl on cbligation 10,051 638 {4,292) 3,257 5,629

Experience adjustment on plan assets 2,194 a8 (410) (3,322) (852)
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2.13.2

214

215

2.16

2.16.1

2.16.2

Sensitivity analysis

Significant assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and
expected salary increase. The possible changes in defined obligation due to change of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant are as follows :

(Rupeesinthousand)

Discount Rate +1% 114,267
Discount Rata-1% 125,232
Long Term Salary Increases +1 % 125,462
Long Term Salary Increases-1% 113,963
Provident fund

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the employees at
the rate of 8.33% of basic salary plus applicable cost of living allowance.

Borrowings and their cost
Baorrowings are recorded at the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurrad
except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction and commissioning of a qualifying asset. Such berrowing costs, if any, are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Trade and other payables

Liahilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to
the Company.

Taxatlon

Current

Provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
income tax laws.

Deferred

Defarred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and thair
carrying amounts appearing in the unconsolidated financial statements. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the future and taxable income will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of the unconsolidated
statement of financial position and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilised.



217

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

As the provision for taxation has been made partially under the normal basis and partially
under the final tax regime, therefore, the deferred tax liability has been recognised on a
proportionate basis in accordance with TR 27 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
besn enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assels are reviewed annually to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated and impairment losses are recognised in the unconsolidated statement
of profitorloss .

Provisions

Frovisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, if it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak
Rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the unconsolidated statement of financial position
date. Exchange gains and losses are includedin unconsolidated staterment of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

- Sales are recorded on despatch of goods to customers.

- Income on investments is recorded when the right to receive is established.

- Income / profit on bank treasury call and deposit accounts is recorded on accrual basis.
- Storage income is recorded on accrual basis.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on operating (business) segments of the Company. These
business segments are engaged in providing product or services which are subject to risks
and rewards that are different from the risks and rewards of other segments.

Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assels are
derecognised at the time when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that
comprises the financial assets. All financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when they
are extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities are taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss currently.
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2.23 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right

to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset or settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.24 Dividend and appropriation toreserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the unconsolidated financial
statements in the period in which these are approved.

2.25  Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

MNote 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
3. Fixed Assets

Property, plant and equipment :
Operating fixed assets

. . 31 2,605,198 2,508,472
Capital work-in-progress 3.4 38 990 180.788
Major stores and spare parts 35 T 2:91 0

2,645,188 2,692,170
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31 Operating fixed assets for 2018 :

Drepreciation !
Accumubated  amorization  Accumulated
depreciation /  chargefor  depreciation /  Writhen down Aninual

Casl Cosl amortization  theyoar&  amorization value rate of
asal Bsal a5 al accumulaled asal a5 al depreciation |/
Cctober 1,  Additions/  Seplember  Oclober1,  Deprecialion  Seplember  Seplomber  amorization
217 {Daletions) 30, 28 27 ondeletions 30, 2018 30, 2018 %
(Rupees in Mausands)
Land
Freshold - Sugar / Distllary division 142,117 45,863 183,980 - . - 184,580 .
Leasehold - Textile division 483 . 439 241 5 248 243 1.0
Buildings on freehold land
Sugar division 115,143 . 115,143 87,557 4,759 72316 42,827 10
Digtillery division 21,243 - 243 17,641 360 18,01 3242 10
Mon-faciory buikdings 30,228 . 30,228 23390 342 23732 8498 5
Buildings on leasehold land
Texlile division 19,335 . 19,335 16,80 250 17,081 2,25 10
Planl and machinery
Sugar division 2419210 235,352 2,603,425 B41,734 171,120 872,353 1,630,872 10
(52,337) (20,301}
Distillery divisian - Mote 3.1.1 1,233,538 70,842 1,304,380 SE9.T14 66,042 657,756 46,624 10
Texdile divizion 130,703 662 131,365 79,739 5154 B4,893 45,472 10
Raiway siding - Sugar division 4B8 . 458 455 i 456 2 10
Electric, gas and water nslallabons
Sugar / Distillery division 8,808 - 8,808 8321 48 8470 438 10
Textile division 3,801 - 3501 2550 65 35 586 10
Fumibure, fittings, electrical and
offica equipment
Sugar [ Distillery division 70,031 12,701 82,30 54,478 5873 B0,128 22,373 25
[231) (223}
Textile division 9,745 78 9,823 227 121 9402 421 25
Traclors  trolleys and
agricullure implements
Sugar dhigion 2,785 . 2,765 2Te 10 2,726 k- 2
Molor cars [ vehicles
Sugar / Distillery division 31,508 785 1,847 15,475 3220 18,5M 13,276 2
[443) {124}
Textile division TE4 - T4 638 13 T 53 20
Totsl 4,239,693 358,083 455,166 | L7al22] | 250,084 1GA9G67 | 2,605,198
(53.011) (40,648}

3.1.1  Plant and machinery of distillery division include storage tanks of the CO2 unit having written down
value of Rs.15.35 (2017: Rs.17.05) million installed at Coca Cola Beverages Pakistan Limited
and Pakistan Beverages Limited premises for storage of Liquidified Carbondioxide.

3.1.2 Particulars ofimmovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Particulars Location Total Area
Land Mawabshah, District Shaheed Benazirabad 339.125 Acre
Land D-140/B-1, Manghopir Road, S.1.T.E. Karachi. 1.12 Acre
Land 60/1-B,0il Installation Area, Keamari, Karachi. 4000 Sgm
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3.1.3 Reconciliation of carrying values for 2018

Land

Buildings on freehald land
Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and machinery

Railway siding
Electric, gas and water installations
Furniture, fittings, electrical

and office equipment

Tractors / trolleys and agriculture implements
Mator cars / vehicles

42

Depreciation /
Written amortization Writtan
daown charge for Down
Value the year & value
as at accumulated as at
Qctober 1, Additions / Depreciation September
207 (Deletions) on deletions 30, 2018
----- --(Rupees in thousands)--=-------
142,365 46,863 5 188,223
58,026 - 5,461 52,585
2,504 - 250 2,254
2272264 308,056 244 316 2,323,968
(52,337) (40,301)
3 1 2
1,138 114 1,024
16,027 12,779 6,004 22,794
(231) (223)
49 - 10 39
16,096 785 3,233 13,329
(443) (124)
2,508 472 368,483 259,394 2,605,198
{53,011) {40,648)




3.1.4 Operating fixed assets for 2017 :

Dapraciation /
Accumulated  amortization  Accumulated
depreciation/ chargafor  dapreciation/ Written down Annual

Caosl Caoel amortization  thayear&  amonization valus rata of
asat asat as at accumulatad as al as al dapraciation /
Dctober 1, Additions ! Soplomber  Octobar1,  Depreciation  Saptamber  Saplember  amontization
JiHE (Delations) 30, 27 26 on deledlone 30, 2017 30, 2017 %
..............{ﬁm in Ehal gam}....._..........
Land

Freshold - Sugar | Distiliery division 106,549 35,568 142,117 - - - 142,117 -

Lexasahold - Tefile division 480 . 483 236 5 241 248 1.1
Buildings on frechold kund

Sugar division 84,543 30,600 115,143 63,735 3822 67,557 47 586 10

Distillary divigian 243 . 243 17,241 400 17,641 602 il

Man-tactary buildings 30,228 . 0224 3,080 360 £330 [%: <] 5
Buiidi'lgs on laasahold land

Tendile divigion 18,335 . 19,335 16,553 o78 16,831 2504 10
Plant and machinery

Sugar division 1,516,568 1,018,282 2419210 BAZ 814 107,062 BA1, 734 1,677 476 10

(116,851) {108,172)
Distillery division - Note 3.1.1 1,136,250 47,450 1,283,538 G387 B, 0 GES.T14 a3 B4 10
{180) (173)

Teudile divigion 130,703 . 130,703 74,076 5,663 M, 50,554 10
Ralway siding - Sugar divisian 468 . 458 454 1 485 3 10
Elactrc, gas and water installatans

Sugar / Distillary divigion H,H08 - 8,808 B.267 54 B3 487 10

Teudile divigion 3601 . 350 2878 72 2450 651 10
Fumiture, fittings, alectrical and office
equipmant

Sugar / Digtillary division 67,223 6,112 0,031 53,060 4,561 54,478 15,553 5

(3,304) (3,143)

Taxtila divizion 9,668 w 8,745 9,134 137 827 44 %
Traclors ! tralleys and

agriculturs Implamants

Sugar division 2,765 . 2,765 2,704 12 2718 49 20
Meaor cars [vehiclag

Sugar | Distillary divizion 3,484 183 31,505 11,583 4,003 15475 16,080 )

{162) (111
Teudile divigion 64 = Te4 631 17 £ 65 Rl
Total 3,170,659 1,189,291 4,219,893 1,650,334 192 485 1,732 2,508,472
(120,297) {111,589




3.1.5 Reconciliation of carrying values for 2017

Depreciation /

Written amortization Written
down charge for Down
Value the year & value
as at accumulated as at

Qctober 1, Additions / Depreciation September
2016 (Deletions) on deletions 30, 2017

----- --(Rupees in thousands)---------

Land 106,802 35,566 5
Buildings on freehald land 32,008 30,600 4,582 142,365
Buildings on leasehold land 2,782 278 58,026
Plant and machinery 1,342 763 1,116,751 178,764 2,504
(116,831) (108,345) 2,272,264
Railway siding 4 - 1 3
Electric, gas and water installations 1,264 - 126 1,138
Furniture, fittings, electrical
and office equipment 14,697 6,189 4 698 16,027
(3,304) (3,143)
Tractors / trolleys and agriculture implements 81 . 12 49
Motor cars / vehicles 19,984 183 4,020 16,096
(162) (111)
1,520,365 1,188,291 192,486 2508472

(120,297) {111,598)

Note 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
32 Allocation of depreciation / amortization
charge for the year:

Cost of Sales

Sugar division 19 179,116 113,522
Distillery division 19 71.780 70,466
Textile division 19 5,474 6,018
256,370 190,008

Administrative expenses
Sugar division 21 2,260 1,817
Distillery division 21 194 156
Textile division 21 144 154
Tarminal 18.1 426 353
3,024 2,480
259,394 192,486

a4




33 Details of fixed assets disposed off:

Wrillen Relaticnship
Accunulated  down Sale Gainon  Mode of Particulars af with
Cosd teprecigtion  Value  Procesds  disposal  Disposal Purchasars Purchazar
ceemmeeeoRUPERS i1 OGNS wmcemee
Plant and Machinery
Sugar division
Slipring Mators 4,727 3,71 986 1,048 83 Megobiation Syed Azam Hussain MNong
Tagvi
“House #:266, Shabeor
PleceGharibadad,
MNawabshah
Juica haatar 1,526 1,389 12 1975 1846 MNegotiation Muhammad Megbool Mone
Pumps, alactis matars, deap bad "Burewala Vehari,
filigrs and cthers a2 25,353 4458 5498 539 ' Punijab® Mone
Mud bed filkers, nozzels and others 15,770 9,788 558 g 722 T40 ' ' Mone
52,337 40,301 12,036 15,244 3208
Furnitura, fittings, electrical and
office equipment
Sugar division | Distillery division
Fumiture & fittings 2 223 B 42 4 Negotiation Various Mang
Motor cars [ vehicles
Hems having carry vadue ol less than
s 50,000 each 43 124 38 3,590 3271 Tendar Various Mana
208 501 40,848 12,383 18,876 6,513
2017 120,297 111,583 8,59 12,548 3851
Mote 2018 2017

3.4 Capital work-in-progress
Flant and machinery
Building
Advance to supplier
3.41 Movement in capital work-in-progress
Balance at the beginning of the year
Cost incurred during the year
Transfer from Major stores and spare parts
Transfer to operating fixed assets

Balance at the end of the year

3.5 Major stores and spare parts
Stores

3.51 Movement in major stores and spare parts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Transfer to capital work-in-progress

Balance at the end of the year

(Rupees in thousands)

39,990 169,868

- 7,021

- 3,899

3.4.1 39,980 180,788
180,788 592,155

23,633 B,421

138,064 727,563

342 485 1,328,138

(302,495) (1,147,351)

39,990 180,788

- 2,910

3.5.1 - 2,970
2,910 49,365

135,154 681,108

138,064 730,473

(138,064) (727,563)

- 2,910
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4.2
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4.23

Long-term investments Note
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Number of shares Face
value
2018 2017 Rs. Company Name
Investments in subsidiary company - at cost
5,000,000 10,000 10 HSM Energy Limited 43

Available for Sale
Investments in related parties - Quoted - at fair value

147,797 147,797 5 Balochistan Particle Board Limited
24,136,691 24,136,691 10 Bank AL Habib Limitad
5363772 5383772 5 Habib Insurance Company Limited

Investments in related parties - Unquoted - at cost
1,249,999 1,249,999 10 Uni Energy Limited
10,800,000 4,600,000 10 Uni Food Industries Limited

Investments in other companies Quoted - at fair value

40,000 40,000 10 Amreli Steels Limited
275,160 188,160 10 Cherat Cement Company Limited
31,078 31,078 i0  Dawood Lawrencepur Limited

210,000 190,000 10 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
80,000 80,000 10 Engro Corporation Limited

12,500 12,500 10 Engro Foods Limited
123,200 123,200 10 Engro Fertilizer

41,088 30,000 10 Engro Polymer & Chemical
90,600 80,600 10 Faran Sugar Mills Limited

118,885 118,885 10 Fauji Fertiizer Company Limited
80,000 20,000 10 Fauji Food Limited

188,000 189,000 5 First Habib Modaraba
12,100 12100 10 GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited
3830 3,830 10 GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited

400,000 400,000 10 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
108,213 297,513 10 Habib Bank Limited

13,350 13,350 10 Indus Motors Company Limited
101,000 101,000 10 International Industrias Limited
115,000 10,000 10 International Steels Limited

12,815 12,815 10 Jubliee Life Insurance Cao. Limited

1,410,000 1,410,000 10 K-Electric Limited

43,000 33,000 10 Lucky Cement Limited

50,000 50,000 10 MCB Bank Limited
150,116 150,116 10 Mehran Sugar Mills Limited

450 450 10 Millat Tractors Limited
14,000 14,000 10 Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited
20,000 20,000 10 Packages Limited
5,150 5,150 10 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited
B 6 10 Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited
6,243,098 6,243,098 5 Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limitad
711,503 711,503 5 Thal Limited
384,000 384,000 10 The Hub Power Company Limited
60,062 48,322 10 TPL Insurance Limited

43,248 43246 10 TPL Corporation Limited
800,000 800,000 10 TPL Properies

23,670 18,725 10 The Searle Company Limited

77.000 77,000 10 United Bank Limited

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

50,000 100
525 1,323
1947,590| | 1,390,273
64,097 79,813
2012212 1,471,409
12,500 12,500
108,000 46,000
120,500 58,500
2,598 4,079
22,164 22,575
5,283 6,062
21,506 27,904
24,930 24,247
1,059 1,188
9,300 7,751
1,193 1,002
6,795 7,164
11,608 0,884
2,423 561
2,079 2,153
1,789 2,226
1,262 1,011
18,600 13,380
16,380 53,778
18,672 22,973
21,735 29,310
10,462 1,211
8,009 8,071
7,544 9,026
22,056 18,651
10,061 10,450
15,875 21,081
456 562
1,820 1,988
8,944 11,540
1,596 2,357
15 9
117,682 81,722
310,934| | 392,109
33,580 42,935
1,291 894
261 392
6,600 8,400
7,478 7,967
11,858 14,643

765,907 873,056

2948618 _ 2,403,065




4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

HSM Energy Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The principal activity of the
HSM Energy Limited will be to generate and sell electricity to the Company and National Grid.
Investment in subsidiary includes 1,500 shares in the name of nominee directors of the HSM
Energy Limited.

Investments in subsidiary company, associated companies or undertakings have been made in
accordance with the requirements under the Act.

The aggregate cost of the above investments, net of impairment, is Rs.705.43 (2017: Rs.642.13)
million.

Unrealised gain of As.483.12 (2017: Unrealised gain Rs.421.24) million on the abave investments,
arising from change in the fair value of these long-term investments during the current year has
been recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

MNote 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Long-term loans - secured, considered good

Executives 5.1&52 767 1,675
Other employees 9,739 11,861
53 10,508 13,536

Receivable within next twelve months shown
under current assels:

Executives 9 (767) {841)
Other employees 9 4,940 6,025
5,707 6,966
4,799 6,570

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was
Rs.1.34 (2017: Rs.4.79) million.

Movement of loans to executives during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,575 202
Disbursements 75 1,607
1,650 1,899
Repayments (883) (324)
Balance at the end of the year 767 1,575

Long-term loans of Rs.10.51 (2017: Rs.13.54) million, include loans of As. Nil (2017: Rs.0.17)
million and As.2.26 (2017: Rs.3.76) million to executives and workers respectively which carry no
interest as per Company policy and CBA agreement. The balance amount of loan carries interest
@ 7% (2017: 7%) per annum. These are secured against property documents and retirements
benefits. These loans are carried at cost due to practicality and materiality of amounts involved.

Comparative figure have been restated to reflect changes in definition of executive as per
Company Act 2017.
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8.1

48

Stores and spare parts

Stores
Frovision for obsolescence and slow moving stores

Spare parts
Provision for obsolescence and slow moving spare parts

Stock-in-trade

Raw materials
Distillery division
Textile division

Work-in-process
Sugar division
Textile division

Finished goods
Sugar division
Distillery division
Textile division
Trading division

Bagasse
Fertilizers

Trade debts - considered good

Export - Secured against export documents
Local - Unsecured

The aging of trade debts at September 30, is as follows :

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired:
within 90 days
91 to 180 days

Mote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
107,684 84,774
EE.EU{J ] !9.5{]0!
84,342 64,253
{19,792) (19,792)
&4,550 44 461
162,734 119,735
428 702 242 834
15,163 B 572
443,865 251,406
835 1,390
45,154 31,588
45 989 32,978
2,039,530 1,102,539
206,491 267,710
787 a7
2,980 2,980
2,249,788 1,373,326
20,332 12,714
4,121 3,188
2,?54&95 1,6?3 612
363,159 117,711
148,383 136,669
a1 511,542 .
504,654 250,265
3472 2,420
3,416 1,695
511,542 254,380




8.2 Following are the
Mote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Name of Foreign Jurisdiction Type of transaction

Switzerland Letter of credit 55,236 -
Dubai Letter of credit 90,845 90,554
India Letter of credit 175,420 -
Germany Letter of credit - 6,058
United Kingdom Letter of credit 10,881 4,289
United Kingdom Document against payment 30,777 16,810
363,159 117,711
9. Loans and advances - considered good
Loans - secured
Current maturity of long-term loans
Executives 5 767 241
Other Employees 5 4,940 6,025
5,707 6,966

Advances - unsecured
Suppliers 384,763 796,466

10. Trade deposits and short-term prepayments

Trade deposits 751 751
Short-term prepayments 8,766 8,998
9,517 9,749

1. Other receivables - Considered good

Duty drawback and research & development support claim 31,582 17,112
Cash freight support receivable 89,280 -
Dividend receivable 3,673 3,336
Sales tax refundable / adjustable . - 115,686
Others 11.1 3,748 15,685
128,283 151,819

11.1 Includes Rs.3.46 (2017: Rs.15.38) million from HSM Energy Limited - wholly owned subsidiary.
Maximum aggregate amount due from the subsidiary company at the end of any month during the
yearwas 50.70 (2017: 15.38) million.

12. Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand 275 273
Balances with banks in :

Current accounts 89,752 19,482

Treasury call accounts 121 126,848 169,451

Term Deposit Receipts 12.2 540,000 735,000

12.3 766,600 823,933

766,875 824,206
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12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

15.
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Profit rates on treasury call accounts ranged between 3.75% 1o 6.40% (2017: 3.75% to 5.50%) per
annum.

Profit rates on Term Deposit Receipts ranged between 5.80% to 6.80% (2017: 5.80% to 6.05%)
perannum.

Maturity of these Term Deposit Receipts are one month.
Includes Rs.695.16 (2017: Rs.895.90) million kept with Bank AL Habib Limited - a related party.

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Number of Shares) (Rupees in thousands)
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 5 each
10,136,700 10,136,700 fully paid in cash 20,604 W),664
130,863,300 139,863,300  Ordinary Shares of Rs. 5 each
issued as bonus shares gg'g:}g ggg'gég
150,000,000 150,000,000 L :

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company includes 14,896,001 Ordinary shares of
Rs.5 each {2017: 23,764,498) held by related parties at the end of the year.

WVoting rights, Board Selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the
shareholding.

Mote 2018 2017
Reserves (Rupees in thousands)
Capital
Share premium 34,000 34,000
Revenue
General 141 4,173,500 3,878,500
Unappropriated profit 903,281 559,895
Unrealised gain on investments - available for sale 2,243,189 1,760,940
7,319,970 6,199,335
7,353,970 6,233,335
At the beginning of the year 3,878,500 3,486,000
Transferred from unappropriated profit 295,000 412,500
4,173,500 3,878,500
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax liability on accelerated tax depreciation allowance on
operating fixed assets taxable temporary differences: 210,000 203,000
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary difference:
Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stores & spare parts (7,000} {7,000}
Unabsorbed tax depreciation allowance {(117,000) (92,000)
Unadjusted tax credit on investment - (5,500)
(124,000) (104,500)
86,000 98,500




16.

16.1

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

Mote 2018 2017

{Rupees in thousands)
Trade and other payables

Creditors 1,191,593 1,043,251
Accrued liabilities 219,560 201,612
Payable to Employees Gratuity Fund 380 276
Sales-tax / Federal excise duty 22,793 -

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 16.1 50,783 26,474
Workers' Welfare Fund 14,945 37,141
Income-tax deducted at source 100 617

1,500,164 1,309,371

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balance at the beginning of the year 26,474 51,983
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 443 1,094
26,917 53,077
Amount paid to the WPPF (26,917) {53,077)
Allocation for the year 22 50,783 26,474
Balance at the end of the year 20,783 26,474

Contingencies and commitments

On May 22, 2015 the Govermnmaent of Pakistan promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development (GID)
Cess Act, 2015 and levied GID Cess on gas bills at the rate of Rs.100 / MMBTU on all industrial

consumers. The GID Cess Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the
GID Cess Act, 2011 and GID Cess Ordinance, 2014,

The Company challenged the vires of GID Cess Act, 2015 before the Honourable High Court of
Sindh. On July 24, 2015 the Honourable High Court of Sindh passed an order restraining the S5GC
from demanding and collecting GID Cess as levied by the GID Cess Act, 2015. On October 26, 2016,
the case was decided by the double bench of the Honourable High Court of Sindh in favour of the
Company. The Government has filed a review appeal before the double bench of Honourable High
Court of Sindh, where the Company was not made party to such litigation. Currently, GID Cess is not
being charged to the Company by SSGC.

The Financial exposure of the Company upto September 30, 2018 is Rs.40.08 (2017: 35.82) million.
However, in view of the advice of legal counsel no provision has been made in these unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Government of Sindh vide notification dated July 8, 2014 levied a fee of Rs.0.50/litre for storage
of rectified spirit in bonded warehouse at Terminal Kaemari, Karachi. The Company disputed the
above levy and filed constitutional petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging
the above fee. On July 23, 2014, the Honourable High Court of Sindh granted stay and suspended
the operation of the above notification. The case was lastly fixed for hearing on October 9, 2018 and
was not taken up for hearing. The financial exposure as at September 30, 2018 is Rs.62.03 million. In
view of the advice of legal counsel, the Company is confident of a favourable outcome of the case and
accordingly no provision has been made in these unconsoclidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the decision of ECC on January 10, 2013, the FBR vide its SRO No. 77(1)/2013 dated
February 7, 2013, allowed benefit to sugar exporters by reducing FED rate from 8.0% to 0.5% on
local sales, equivalent to quantity exported by the mills. The Company availed the benefit and
claimed Rs.56.56 million on account of reduced rate of FED.
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17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

Against the aforementioned claim, FBR disallowed an amount of Rs.7.0 million and also levied
default surcharge of Rs.0.3 million. The disallowances was on the basis that the benefit of claim
accrues and arises from February 7, 201 3, the date of SRO Mo: 77(1) /2013 and not from January 10,
2013, the date of ECC meeting wherein the benefit was approved by ECC. The Company maintains
that the sugar mills are entitled to avail the benefit of reduced rate of FED on sugar exported against
the export quota allotted by ECC inits meeting held on January 10, 2013. Accordingly, the Company
filed a suit before Honourable High Court of Sindh and the operations of the said order were
suspended by the Honourable Court vide its order dated April 23, 2014. The Company withdrew suit
on November 14, 2018 and filed an appeal before commissioner inland revenue to set-aside
impugned demand or any other relief which may deem fit as per law. In view of the advice of legal
counsel, the Company is confident of a favourable outcome and accordingly no provision has been
made in these unconsalidated financial statements.

During the year 2009-10 the Company alongwith other sugar mills filed a Constitutional Petition
before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority
- PSQCA challenging the notifications issued in respect of registration of the Standard Mark for
refined sugar manufactured and sold by the Company and levy of marking fee at the rate of 0.1% of
ex-factory price of sugar sold with effect from January 1, 2009.

On December 4, 2012 the Honourable High Court of Sindh decided the case in favour of the
Company. Against the above order, PSQCA filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of
Pakistan. On November 25, 2013 the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan passed an interim
order against PSQCA restraining them from demanding any registration of standard marks /
licensing fee from the sugar mills till further order and the case was adjourned to date in office.

According to the advice of legal counsel, the demand raised is without any lawful authority and is in
violation of the Constitution, hence, no provision is made in this regard.

The Company has provided counter guarantees to Bank AL Habib Limited, a related party,
amounting to Rs. 250.00 (2017: Rs. 250.00) million against agriculture finance facilities to the
growers supplying sugarcane to the mills and counter guarantees to other banks amounting to
As.2,021.34 (2017: 1,691.76) million against guarantees issued by banks in favour of third parties on
behalf of the Company. These guarantees are secured by way of registered charge against
hypothecation of stores and spares, stock-in-trade, assignment of trade debts and other receivables.

Commitments for capital expenditure amounting ta Rs.1.79 (2017: 85.20) million.

Rentals under operating lease agreements in respect of vehicles, payable over the following next
fouryears, are as follows:

2018 2017

Year ending September 30 {(Rupees in thousands)
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2018 - 13,709
2019 16,955 10,306
2020 13,296 6,461
2021 B.BT5 2177
2022 3,447 -
42,673 32,6563




‘2N200 funuodda uaym pue se sessejow [ JeBns 2 saqpowwad 1o Buipen u) pafebus < uosmp Buipeai)-

“se(axel picyasncy jo Buunpejnuew u) paBedus 51 uojsip eynxal-

‘sauoey sfiziols ¥jna Guipinoid pue (207) apoeip uogres paiypinbi) oueya jo Buunjsenuew u pabebue s uasiwp Aegusig-
1efins peui jo Buuromynuew w pabefive s uoisivp Jefing-

Yjaud Bujesadg
L6 0L Z.5'S0E
i) LF'gal £2 B0 JY0)
66 .m._ﬂ Wz.m%z 8[BS J0] S{TE|(EAE - SJUSLISIAL|
La-buo) uo Juswedw)
(kso'ze)  (esa'ss) Zz  sesuadxa Bupeiado yi)
See'eez  lep'sye 6559 (peEBS)  (gse'y)  SAS¥2  6UG'E9E  BOE'G/E  (RASIOLL)  LBLY 8Woau| Jayio pue sesuadxe
Gujesedo Jayio alojeq ($50)) f 1yaid
FOZ'EEE l8'88F BOEE GE3 L4751 218'92 BOS'¥EL BOE'EVL LGS0 LEL 94252
FaLsE | [resall | [21s GiE SZE ¥ 2315 929’6 gLy, | [96TERL | (WOLESE 12 sasuadxa aMENSIUILDY
ObP'SLL | [AFL'EEE | [LBLL DLz 250°LL Sp9'LE eFEvLL | OES'VEL | |S59'LF £9/'c8 0Zasuadxs wonnquisip pue Bues
Ob1' 063 ZEl'vie’l  lodE (3:2'35)  820'%1 209'15 LrL'LEY 9Ll'ven’l  l80'08 Lb9'952 Woud ss0g)
06L'VFS'S  99E'YRY'S 0/8'.64 ¥5LBEE  GFF'ERE 28" 258 IS2'CEB'l 955106t OW2'k2S'S  Z89'0SL'E 6l FEES |0 207 [958
OEE'PEL'L 0B9'RSLY JEL'S04 olp' B2 B9YIST AE'EYS  BOPESPT  ELLSEEE  LGTI0D'E  PEEL00W
250} I®YL L S - - 1'BL 18U - ewwoou sERI0NS [EURWE |
- - - SBAES
BIEEEL'L  PROISLY  LEL'S0R ofp' B2 B9YISE REEYS  95/U10F'E  O5Z'HLEE  LBE10B'C  PEEL0DW SOES 9N
vIE'0EL'E  PEVYEE'E LEE'LL2 - iz pierd ITL'UES  GEETEE’l  996'ziv'E  £95 (STl
ook 95 | 1- FLETL FElE - - UDISSUILIOD puUE
wbiey ‘fnp uadeg s
mhm”.__bm”w B51'Z26'C E.__ﬁ.m.mm a _mmm”mmm ‘LS mmm”mmm__ m_.m”mhv_m mwm.mmw _.._._.h”w___m_ safes odxg
YOE'GRE'Y 099'998°C OIBEBS  O/p 182  EO06'E lscs LIBYBY  OEC'GhY  PELPOC'E EECHEL'E
tEe'vEr  SRSRAE 00119 ED9OF £42 £8 £EZ'0R LEE'EL 996’/ 152092 finp
508 [BIEDA [ XE] SBES 5587
BIDU0E'Y EPEMEP OIESSE FEOEEE S4LF yau's DIE'SEE  LLLELS  22L19S°E  pOE'VEE'E S8(Es [EJ07]
SadiAas pue Safes Jay
Li0g g LI0E BLOZ Ldg ai0e LIOE EL0Z LW0E giig 0N
FeL o Suiprs UQISING axe ] o Asegsig uaisag sefing

(spuesnouy) u saadny) uoeuLOjul pajejal pue synsal Gunelado juawbag gl




‘SijaUBG Jualwaas JE1s 0 jaadsal un o (90°0'sY (2402) 21°0°SH JO WNS B sonpul SysLaq Jauo pue seliem ‘sauBes  2'gL

2591 et - - - - 258l 987y - -

vELE EFCF - - . . ¥z EveF - -
£E Edl - - - - 85 tdl - - sasuadia ByIn
i 55 - - - - gl 85 - - SoUBINEU|
Ly b - - - - it b - - sesuade Buwun
e aA pue Guigenel |
ESE g2p - - . . £58 927 - - Z'¢ 90U - voeEaICEq
BLF 0Ea - - - - Bl 059 - - SaKe) pue 592 ey
TN 83z - - . . Ll 992 - - gefi pue Ayouoale 'alEm
|EE EFF - - - - 26 B = - BOUBUSJUIBLL PUE SIIRCEY
(574 8612 - - - - E6L 951'2 - - Z'8L 810U - SHjEUSg JaLio
pue sefiem ‘sauepsg
sesuada Pupwe ] (558
9EE'E BLO'LL - - - - 888's BLA'LI - - jou - awoau) eBrio)s [euiwa)

SaoJMRS  L'BL
LI0Z BLOZ 2102 B2 LI0Z 2102 LL0Z BLOZ LI0Z 810z
moL uoising Buipe | ETLET uoising Ag(nsig wotsia g s2bng

(spuesnoy} ul seadny)

54




0EB'¥EL'L

025'85L°2

Z80'2e 9/0'E2
£95'962 -

- LBL'AL
£65'S6E -
£1G2°19 -
G228'8l -
BEF'SLE -
¥BE CE e0g'e9l
#0291 -
60201 -
©.E'CH ¥I8'¥EI
91E'BEL -
Ste've 9EL'921

- ¥6.°661'L

- 9G58'67E

- £20°LE2
Z08'61 22681
Z66'G. -
£2Z1°291 LLEB LOL
195" LBS 00+'£8S
Q0F'9L5 9e0’LL
285 LeE'Y ZeL L0

(spuesnoy] ul saadny)

2108

gLozg

940 UBY) 8I0W J0} SIUNDDOE J8LIOISND 8U0 ‘anuanal |elo} sAuedwon syl j0  +'8lL

*SI8LOJSND JO UOIJEDO| BY) UC PISE] SI BAOGE UDIEULIOJUI SNUBAS) 8Y |

puejioH
Jewuueiy
aouBI4
PuepayiaN
Ay
yoxBueg
auiddiiyd
EIpU|
ByuBUS
puejiey |
uemie |
fanpn)
EJLY yInog
PUEHAZUMS
BepeuUED
uedep
asodebuis
risfeepn
wopBury pejun
avn

B2I0Y
UElsied
(8sm Aunog) Si8W0)SND WOl senuanay

S13WOJSND JO uoljewuou| jealydesboan g8l

55




"SjjBUE] UuswBiE) YBS 10 Joadsa) Ui uoi)jiw _HN.m.mI ”h_._u_.m,__ S01'5H 10 Wns B apniul SjLeus] Byl pue saliem '‘SAUEES L'BL

Q06L¥YG'9 BISVAY' 0/FM6L  pSLIGEE  GYP'Ere 1/EZRY  19e@B6L 995106 (01Z'MeSE  [890G/E

lizv's (Lp1 048y 5 568 1) | BL2'L8  l2LL'sen’ W%@
aze'eie’ 1l [eassrez] foasE 0362 16) 184 012729z} | M6rs0z) | faeezal’L F
309'46L | |1zg'ore ||926'95L | |PSL'BSS ||089 L99 - - . .
£66'002_| [g2€'eL€') | |¥26'E 0962 258 6 o6g'szl | (01492 ||izv'e9 | |segz0lt
(L10'EL) (629'¢) 21 555
E 1536'5t) (995 12) | [¥51's%) 052"t lseg)
LI£'0g 84628 GG’ L2 39S°1E 8322 062’1
M@% 097066 ?v“mh %ﬂmi % BES EAP mmm? %
. L{¥1'01) . . - = . T
. 1156'52) . 1156'52)
(005's18) | fe1e'ase) (e0s's1g) | fe1e'ase)
18201 | f612'e8) . . 18201 | ls12'es)
(52001 | §555'92) (52L'p1) | fess'te) - - . .
ZP1'8z 628 29} BIZ pag’y LB00L  ||ZIv'02 £40'22
a00'06) | |0ig'esE 3109 Pit'S 9at'0L DBLLL ||Z2S'ER | |3KVasl
PEE'E PIED - . - - PEZ'E PIED
B9S/1 82251 825 56 W] 10Z'9 6395 £09'9
089} ZLZE - - - - 089} ZIES
opc'onl | | OBF'ESk BIZZ 859'% L25'80 EEI'B. | |l08'SE | |GPE'SL
0ZZ'0lE | |B5LvEe pheal 2922 ||L6E0L | |BOUESE ||6BE'BF | |gEE'EE
LOE'S1 VEB'LL ZEL] L05') 099’y VEO'B Sl £6E°L
I6E'P0L | | LBI'PLL . . BITVE BIvZr | |Z2589 | |ZlEEL
L0098 LB Lio'ee BIO'PE - - - -
Z99'Z5 BZ! bR PISLE 55252 - - BrLIy LLb'BE
=L 5008 . . BYI'BE BEIBZ | |9/0F | |69L'09
BEF'} 262l . ' - - BEF'} Z62'}
LID'9SE | | pEE'EOP 19221 Ser'vl || bLpED EPO'ER | [91E'LE | |LE5'90C
CRL'GEE'S  0BLZR0D 908240 2'9SE  ELO'SAYL  BES'DSSL  Q0E'6FLY  0Z2'9REy
[B0F1ce]  (ES8ERE) [2/53] [£a1sy]  (yegeyel  (EOLEeH) - -
IGS'GFED  OPI'ORF'D BBl POR'LIE  JPE'ELA'L ER0'BLSL 00E'GbL'y  OEZORE'y
zl0ve0o| [ozzcez o Iv08LL | [260zeE |[co9ses’L | [BOZEEs L | [90E'6r1 v | [0EC 9EE Y
BIE'SOL | |e0bI52 i g ALy} ZBL'Z3L | |pESEPE - -
L1z gLz L108 10z LI0Z 8L0Z L102 a1z 210z pLOz
[0 ueisig Buipe | uoIswQ Bjge L uoesiag L) sig uoising eling

(spuesnoy] ui saadny)

spool pausiuy jo oo Buisci)
SESEYING

spood paysiy 1o ¥oois Buedg
paanpeuey spoob 10 1500

ssaood u) yiom 40 yaols Busoy)
ssa00ud U yJom Jo oois Buuadp

1502 Buuriomnuep

essefieg Jo ofeg

fpouie3 jo eEs

ucisiup AsBiIlisID ©) paulajsuRI SaSSEoM

uaisnp Aegsip o) pewsjsuel) assebieg

ajegay / yoEgmeln Aing

sesuadxs Guunjoejnuew sayln

'€ 810U - UOIETILOWE | uoledaidaq

fsuanels pue suouda|al ‘abesog

SOUBINZU|

sefiieyp euoissejoud pue (eba

SOUBUAIUELW pue Siedey

1amod pue |gn) JslEpm

S[BJUE) B5BE) DUR SEXE] ‘SE|Bl "JusY

pawnsuoa sued aueds pue saog

safiieyp sayio pue Buiwesw, ‘Bualig

[esarew Guyaeg

S[EDILINT 538001

sesuads Juswdoianap pue yueassy
L6l 300U - 5)jaus] Iao

pue saliem ‘saueeg

PAWNSUDD [EUSIEW MEY
[RUSIRW MBI JO 3013 Buiscio

SIBEUR| [SE5RULN
[euEIEW MEl o jools Buuadn

s3(es J0 150

Bl

56




sasuadca 1eyood Jo InQ
SENNES A0 | e ]

8.| Mmenrel fjeed Jey
59} Ipne Roinies

uonelaUnWal Sioypny

£'Lg 80U - sasuadxe seyi0
Z'L2 ©10U - UOHEIBUNWAL SIaLpNY
e gjou - vogeidag
a0y Bugeew siopzang
sabueyd jeuorssajoid pue (efan
sleipauad pue uogduosgns 'seay
sefi pue fpouioaa erep
S[EUAY ASB3| PUB S3NE] ‘S1EN Juay
sesuadea Buuny apwen pue Bujena |
fuauonels pue suaydepe) abieng
SHUBLRIUIEWL PUB SIEday
SIUBINEU|

L1 80U - sjhEuaq
1ey1o pue sabew ‘seuees

sesuedixy anensu WY

sasuadna Japp
sasuadys Bu DAy
pue Buypuey ‘ybiey ‘podsues|
S[EJUR) SSE3| pUB 53] "SR JuSy
BouBINEyY|
|02 810U - Sausq Jay)o
pue safiew ‘seuees
sasuadxe uopnqusip pe Guyes

0852 5618 6e g1l 56 [ GER a0z 962 | 7591
591 7 Bl ol 3 6l (i) 001 ) [
085 588 09 e 0z P 5l ¥ee 592 ISy
ISE 8UE or vl Gl iz 0zl Zrl Ll 561
0Es') (WL LI 09 5% L (3 g9 0L 98
"SJJBUET JUBLIBUIE) JEI5 JO Iedse) Uy uoliw (0Z°E'SH LL0Z) 26 SH IO WS B 8pnjou) sjyeusq Jalja pue sabiew ‘seuees
POLAGL  veS9ll LIS G/E G2 Jol's 5z9'6 B/27L __ 9GE'ERL  #OL'9GI
9557 cr06e bl 02 80F 66E \EZ e WEET  PIEH
0852 B61'E 68 all 6 52T GE3 90zt 962} 259')
Prd 8652 . - e trl 851 8l 118} 0922
1608 202 - . 020'2 5842 L0} 297’}
9667 B0L'Z - i e Bl ar G667 5997
8e5'e BO6'E - 7 08 Z58 bt l91'g e
BIF'6 1946 - EFE' L £59'} 208 B05'L
PL0'G) ST - . . E0E ¥av'L WLyl LI
LYy 928G - 0oL 05l B0s 495 Gy Lig'y
192 BBI'E - 1ol 61z 119 859 568’1 1z
.me; 958 - - - - el P& 0sF'l ozl
GLVSB  PE9'SE ZIE BET 09z’ 9L5'E §50'C £06'y BBH 8L BLLoE
"S])JBUB] |uewele) JEIS J0 pedse ur uoliw (B 0°SH SL10Z) DB'0SH |0 WNS B BO0Nju) S|yBUBq Jeyl0 pue sabiew ‘seuEEs
ObPSll  (p1'2S2  _LBL) (iTH Z50'L SPO'LZ  ZpE'PLL  QSG'PEL  SSOUF  FBJ'CR
CEE'C 89931 . . E0EZ woL  Z8se arL'a - .
EZ0Bbl  ZEV'POZ  LELI e 0v0'y 0Lr's SII901  S06'SEL LWSE BKELL
LB0T 090'2 L oo’k GEs 020’
Z5h'e L0Z'6 - - SiF'L 800'2 LIB'E 10z'2
EBFEL 08961 60y £S0'S §50'C 58y Gzl 7666
LI02 ane L1002 210z L0 BL02 2108 e L102 BL0Z
[Bl0 uorswg Buipesy =Pl ETEET uoisiug Aaisig uoisiug sebng

(spuesnoy) u seadny)

4
Fig

e
1oz

57




GOFIEL  SLivCE . -
PLEBGELE IvL9SE'S

. ObL 8BETEL  SELER 130'865  QI6'MOZ aunypuedxe |eyded

BEFZIE  0L1S02 S8l 10| pajeoojeun
o9eg'are’l  1E0'ISIE FIENEL  BL2 9r0'65 B20'55  EBS'ZEL  SLVESL  £69ESS'L  1/9'288') sef(iqe)] uswbes
19526 LLL09E0L
IB6'EI9'E  GOR'PEE'E SIESSE PERIC|EUN
0BS'92S’S ZyE’SES9  GLE'SEE  GKSEEL  GE0'462  189'0SE  SEL0SYL L5531 20S'SEYE S08'9IE'y sjesse uawbeg
£H02 BLOZ LL02 BLOZ L2 8102 LI0E BLOZ £H02 BLOZ
101 ueisig Buipe . LT TiEET ENWEETE] uoisiug Jefing

(spuesnoy} ul seadny)

009l 000'L2
00g -

- 000'S
00021 00021
0Le oLe
ove )
005 00s
ove 0v8
oLe oLe

(spuesnouy} ul saadny)
102 8LoZg

: SMOJ|0} SE S Juawbas Ag ainmypuadxa jendes pue $31))|1IgB1| 'S]9SSE UO UDIELLIOJU|

"puUny s,89U0p SAOQE aU) Ul IsaJajul Aue peY S9SN0ds 118y} Jo SI0J0SII(] SYL JO SUop

peswwW-a-Zeen

Spun4 SWE(] PUBLWILYOWN PpUE BYSEYE JawWwe|]
ucliepuno4 sealaes uoleasnps Siwey
pung Jood qigeH

}sn1| [ealpaw qiaeH

1snu) afeusydio 5 sMopiy, 188 1BWYDY
JSM1 UolEDNP3 gigeH

1sni) wejonsuag epafieg-y

uojINHISU| JO SWeN

:mojeq sjielep Jed se uoljiw (Z'91°sY :£102) 0'12'SY JO UCHBUOP 8pnjoul Sesuadxe Jaulo S,uoISIAIp JeBng

£l

TYie

F¥ie

e

ol 4

58




22,

23.

231

23.2

24,

241

24.2

Mote 2018 2017

(Rupees in thousands)
Other operating expenses

Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund 16.1 50,783 26,474
Workers' Welfare Fund 6,100 5,680
56,883 32,054

Other Income
Income from financial assets

Profit on redemption / sale of investments 231 871 113,981
Dividend incomea 232 108,521 120,629
Exchange gain - net 35,986 2,152
145,378 236,762

Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 6,513 3,851
Agricultural income 2,579 2,245
Scrap sale 7,943 3,241
17,041 9,337
162,419 246,099

Profit on redemption of units includes profit of the following funds managed by Habib Asset
Management Limited, a related party.

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
First Habib Asset Allocation Fund 209 -
First Habib Islamic Income Fund = 35
209 35
Dividend income includes dividend received from the following related parties :
Note 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Bank AL Habib Limited 72410 84,478
Habib Insurance Company Limited 4,023 9,387
76,433 93,865
Finance income - net
Profit on treasury call accounts 121 6,460 10,733
Profit on term deposit receipts 12.2 88,282 77,710
Interest on loan to employees 601 475
95,343 88,8918
Less:
Mark-up / interest on:
Short-term borrowings 24.1 &24.2 | (25,240} (46,433)
Woaorkers' Profit Participation Fund (443) (1,094)
Bank charges (16,456) (14,955)
(42,139) (62,482]
53,204 26,436

The financial facilities from various commercial banks amounted to Rs.8,212 (2017: Rs.5,313)
million.

These facilities are secured by way of registered charge against hypothecation of stock-in-trade,
stores and spares, assignment of trade debts and other receivables. The rate of mark-up during
theyearwas 2.20% (2017 2.25% to 7.54%) per annum.
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Mote 2018 2017

Ru 5 in thousands
25, Taxatlon (Rupee )

Income tax - current 70,000 -
prior years - {54,500)
70,000 (54,500}
Deferred tax (12,500) (5,500)
251 57,500 (60,000}
25.1  Reconciliation of tax (income) / charge for the year
Accounting profit 958,776 497,417
Corporate tax rate 29% 30%
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 278,045 149,225
Tax effect of timing differences (12,500} 3,839
Tax effect of lower tax rates on export and certain income (245,151) {132,065)
Tax effect of income exempt from tax (748) (673)
Tax effect of tax credits (36,138) {107,000)
Tax effect of expenses that are inadmissible
in determining taxable income 73,992 81,174
Adjustment relating to prior years - (54,500}
(220,545) (209,225)
57,500 {60,000)

25.2 Theincome tax return for the Tax year 2018 (financial year ended September 30, 2017) has been
filed.

25.3 Comparison of tax provision and tax assessment for previous years:

Tax Provision
Financial years Taxyears Assessed  for Taxation

{(Rupees in thousands)

September 30,2017 Taxyear2018 25.3.1 - -
September 30, 2016 Taxyear2017 150,173 167,00
September 30,2015 Taxyear 2016 166,377 175,000

25.3.1 Notax liability due to loss and available tax credit.
2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)

26, Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

Profit after taxation 801,276 557,417
Number of ordinary shares of Rs.5 each 150,000,000 150,000,000
Eamnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 6.01 3.72
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27.

271

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation / amortization

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Profit on redemption / sale of investments

Finance income - net

Impairment on long term investment - available for sale
Dividend income

Working capital changes - note 27.1

Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores and spare parts

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and shori-term prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Advance from customers

Met changes in working capital

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

958,776 497,417
259,394 192,486
(6,513) (3,851)
(871) (113,981)
(53,204) (26,4386)
45 445 -
(108,521) (120,629)
135,730 (72,417)
(752,725)  (2,062,058)
341,781 (1,637,052)
(42,999) (10,892)
(1,090,483)| | (1,271,765)
(257,162) (190,212)
412,962 (557,146)
232 (968)
23,873 (135,661)
(953,577) (2,166,644)
190,403 (281,307)
10,449 385,893
200,852 104,586
(752,725) (2,062,058)
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28.

281

28.2

28.3

28.4

29

291

62

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

2018 2017
Chiaf Chief
Execu- Direg- Execu- Total Execu- Direc- Execu- Total
tive fors tives live tors tives

(Rupees in thousands)

Managerial
Remuneration 12,000 14,132 72,505 989,037 11,200 B,660 67,004 B6,8B64

Perquisites
Telaphone 42 39 375 458 42 27 421 490
Bonus - - BB7F BETT - - 7078 7079
Medical 180 714 3,708 4613 252 178 2,269 2,699
Utilities - 627 - 627 - 541 - 541
Entertainment - 305 - 305 - 462 - 462
Retirement bansfits 850 1,036 5143 7028 802 641 5130 6573
13,082 16,853 90,809 120,744 12296 10,509 81,903 104,708
Mumber of persons 1 2 24 27 1 2 22 25

Chief Executive, Directors and certain Executives are also provided with the Company maintained
cars.

Aggregate amount charged in these unconsclidated financial statements in respect of directors'
mesting fee paid to five Non Executive Directors of Rs. 0.50 million (2017: Rs.0.57 million for five
Directors)

OnJuly 24, 2018 Mr. Farouoq Habib Rahimtocla was co-opted as Director in place of Mr. Munawar A.
Habibwho has resigned on July 24, 2018.

Comparative figure have been restated to reflect changes in definition of executive as per Company
Act2017.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, interest risk, liquidity
risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk and capital risk. The Board of Directors reviews and
decides policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties
and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on loans, advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables
and bank balances and profit accrued thereon. The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk
exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining
securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:



29.1.1

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Leng-term loans 4,799 6,570
Long-term deposits 3,928 4,028
Trade debts 511,542 254,380
Loans and advances 390,470 803,432
Trade deposits 751 751
Profit accrued on bank deposits 2,741 1,551
Other receivables 128,283 161,819
Bank balances 766,600 823,933

1,809,114 2,146,464

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as
shown below:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
Trade debts
Customers with no default in past one year 511,542 250,265

Customers with some defaulls in past one year
which have been fully recovered - 4,115

Customers with default in past one year
which have not yet been recovered

29.1.2 Bank Balances
Al+ 766,407 822,270
A2 193 1,663
__766,600 __ 923,933

29,2

Interestrate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

At the date of the statement of financial position, the bank balances of Rs.666.85 (2017: Rs.904.45)
million are subject to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rates have been indicated in Note 12 to
these unconsolidated financial statements. Company's profit after tax for the year would have been
Rs.4.74 (2017: Rs.6.33) million higher / lower if interest rates have been 1% higher / lower while
holding all other variables constant.
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28.3

25.4

64

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to mest its financial obligations as they fall
due.

Year ended On Less than dte12 1105 =5
September 30, 2018 demand 3 months months years years Total

(Rupees in thousands)

Trade and cther payables - 544,704 855,460 - - 1,500,164
Advance from customers - 702,369 - - - 702,369
1,247,073 955,480 . - 2,202,533
Year ended On Less than dto12 1185 »5
September 30, 2017 demand 3 months maonths years years Total
Trade and olher payables . 409,376 899,905 . - 1,300,371
Advance from customers - 651,920 - - . RB1.820
. 1,101,296 899,995 - s 2,001,204
Foreign currencyrisk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate
due to change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due
totransactions in foreign currency. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Trade debts $ 2,676,190 1,095,175

E 189,470 16,361

Advance from customers % 242134 170,585
The following significant exchange rates have

been applied at the reporting dates:

Exchange rates buying $ 124.20 105.37

selling $ 124.40 105.57

buying £ 162.44 141.35

selling £ 162.69 141.62

The foreign currency exposure is partly covered as the outstanding balance at the year end is
determined in respective currency which is converted into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the statement of financial position.

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstirates the sensitivity of the Company's profit before tax and the

Company’s equity to a reasonably possible change in the foreign currency exchange rate, with all
othervariables held constant.



29.5

29.6

29.7

Change in Effect Effect

foreign currency on profit on equity
rate (%) (Rupees in thousands)
September 30, 2018 +10 33,304 32,941
-10 (33,304) (32,941)
September 30, 2017 +10 9,970 9,852
-10 (9,970} (9,852)
Equity price risk

The Company's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about
future values of investment securities. The Company manages the equity price risk through
diversification and placing limits on individual and total investments. Reports on the investment
portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular basis. The Investment
Committee of the Company reviews and approves policy decisions.

At the date of the statement of financial position, the exposure to investments held as available for
salewas Hs.2,898.62 (2017: Rs.2,402.97) million.

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure ample availability of
finance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce
the cost of capital.

The Company manages ils capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The gearing ratio of the company is Nil (2017: Nil) and the company finances its investments portfolio
through management of its working capital and equity with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix
between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Financial assets which are tradeable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the date of the statement of financial position. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets
and liabilities is considered not significantly different from book value.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technigues:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data.
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30.

30.1

30.2

30.3

2018

Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in thousands)
Long-term investments 2,778,119 - 170,500 2,048,619
2,778,119 - 170,500 2,948,619

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in thousands)
Long-term investments 2,344,485 - 58,800 2,403,085
2,344,465 - 58,600 2,403,065

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and No
transfers into and out of level 3 fairvalue measurement.

Capacity and production
2018 2017
Working Working
Cuantity days Quantity days

Sugar division
Crushing capacity 11,000  M.Tons Per Day 7.000  M.Tons Per Day
Crushing based on actual

working days 1,540,000 MTons 140 896,000 M.Tons 128
Actual erushing 1,028,901 M.Tons 140 865,530 M.Tons 128
Sucrose recovery 1030 % 0.97 i
Sugar production 106,005 M.Tons 86,316 M.Tons

Crushing capacity enhanced to 11,000 M. Tons per day under BMR and trial run successfully
completed during last week of crushing season 2016-17. Sugar unit operated below capacity due to
lesser Availability of sugarcane.

Distillery division

a) Ethanol
Capacity 34,000 M.Tons 300 34,000 MTons 300
Actual production 34,643 M.Tons 335 33,687 MTons 344
b) Ligquidified carbon dioxide (Co2)
Capacity 18,000 M.Tons 300 18,000 M. Tons 300
Actual production 9,903 M.Tons 248 11,069 M.Tons 277

¢) During the year, CO2 plants operated below capacity due to lower demand.

Textile division

Capacity 260,000 Kgs. 300 560,000 Kgs. 300
Actual production 928,557 Kgs. 300 515,253 Kgs. 300

The actual production of textile division was higher than the capacity due to Weaving from outside source.
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Provident Fund related disclosure

The following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund as at September
30:

2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Size of the fund - Total assets 307,631 298,223
Fair value of investments 292175 278,358
Fercentage of investments made 84,98 83.34

The cost of above investments amounted to Rs.253.18 million (2017: Rs.256.40 million).

The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Percentage) (Rupees in thousands)
Mational savings scheme 93.65 82,18 273,618 256,575
Bank deposits 6.31 7.78 18,438 21,662
Debt securities 0.04 0.04 119 121
100.00 100.00 292175 278,358

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Number of Employees 2018 2017
Total  Factory Total  Factory
{ Number )
MNumber of employees including contractual employees at Seplember 30 553 431 £56 433
Average number of employees including contractual employees during the year 542 421 560 441

Transactions with related parties

Related parties comprise of subsidiary, associated entities, entities with common directorship,
directors and key management personnel. Material transactions with related parties during the year,
otherthan those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements,
are as follows:

2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Insurance premium paid 25,784 28,499
Insurance claims 200 7,185
Profit on treasury call accounts / term deposits 94,527 83,034
Profit accrued on bank deposits 2,713 1,449
Purchase of investments 161,900 56,100
Payments made on behalf of the subsidiary 37,649 15,380
Amount received from subsidiary 48,568 -
Sale proceeds of investments 50,210 10,035
Dividend received 76,433 93,865
Bank charges 955 470

Transactions with related parties are carried out under normal commercial terms and conditions.
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Following are the related parties with whom the company had entered into transactions or have
arrangement/agreementin place.

Name Basis of association Percentage
of shareholding
Bank Al Habib Limited Common directorship 1.61
Hahib Insurance Company Limited Commeon directorship 4.21
Habib Mercantile Company (Pvt.) Limited Common directorship -
Habib Sons (Pvt.) Limited Common directorship
Habib Assets Management Limited Common directorship
Hasni Textile (Pvt.) Limited Commaon directorship -
HSM Energy Limited Subsidiary 100.00
Uni Food Industries Limited Key Management Personnel are directors  15.43
Dividend

The Board of Directors of Company in their meeting held on December 26, 2018 have proposed a
final cash dividend of Rs.2.75 per share (55%) for the year ended September 30, 2018. The approval
of the members for the proposed final Cash dividend will be obtained at the Annual General Mesting
of the Company to be held on January 28, 2013.

Under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, a tax on every public company shall be
imposed at the rate of 55% of accounting income before tax. However, this tax shall not be appliedin
case of a public company which distributes profit equal to 20% of its after tax profits within six months
fromthe end of the year.

Based on the fact the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed 55% dividend for the year
ended September 30, 2018 which exceeds the above prescribed minimum dividend requirement, the
Company believes that it would not eventually be liable to pay tax on its undistributed profits as of
September 30, 2018.

General

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on December 26, 2018 by the
Board of Directors of the Company

Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Tothe members of Habib Sugar Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Habib Sugar Mills Limited and its
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory infarmation.

In our opinion consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consclidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 September 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Existence and valuation of Stock-in-trade

As disclosed in note 7 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, the stock-intrade balance constitutes
26.44% of total assets of the Company. The cost of finished
goods is determined at average cost including a proportion of
production overheads.

The obsolescence is calculated by taking into account the Net
Realisable Value {(MRV) of related stock-in-trade while mainly
keeping in view the estimated selling price and forecasted sales
volume,

We have considered this area to be a key audit matter due to its
materiality and judgments involved in estimating the NRV of
underlying stock-in-trade as well as the management judgment
in determining an appropriate costing basis and assessing its
valuation.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, reviewing the
management's procedures for evaluating the NRY of stock-in-
trade, observing physical stock counts to ascertain the
condition and existence of stock-intrade and performing
testing on a sample of items to assess the NRV of the stock-in-
trade held and evaluating the adequacy of allowance of write
down of stock-in-trade to NRY as at the year end.

Further, we evaluated the appropriateness of the basis of
identification of the obsolete stock-in-trade and the accuracy of
allowance of write down of inventaries to MRV assessead by the
management, on a sample basis.

We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of stock-in-trade,
on a sample basis and cost of goods with underlying invoices
and expenses incurred in accordance with the valuafion
methods.

We also tested the calculations of per unit cost of finished
goods and WIP and assessed the appropriateness of
management’s basis for the allocation of cost and production
overheads.

We further tested the NRV of stock-in-trade by performing a
review of sales close to and subsequent fo the year-end and
compared with the cost, for a sample of products.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made in
respect of the accounting policies and detailed disclosure in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards.

2.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements under Companies Act, 2017

As referred to in note 1.4 to the accompanying consclidated
financial stalements, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Acl)
became applicable for the first time for the preparation of the
consolidated financial stalements for the year ended 30
September 2018.

The Act forms an integral par of the statutory financial reporting
framework as applicable to the Company and amongst others,
prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to
various elements of the consolidated financial statements.

In the case of the Company, a summary of key additional
disclosures and changes to the existing disclosures have been
stated in note 2.1 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

The above changes and enhancements in the consolidated
financial statements are considered impartant and a key audit
matter because of the volume and significance of the changes
in the consolidated financial statements resulting from the
transition to the new reaparting requirements under the Act.

We assessed the procedures applied by the management for
identification of the changes required in the consolidated
financial statements due fo the application of the Act. We
considered the adequacy and appropriateness of the additional
disclosures and changes to the previous disclosures based on
the new requirements. We also evaluated the sources of
information used by the management for the preparation of the
above referred disclosures and the intemal consistency of such
disclosures with other elements of the consolidated financial
statements.
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Information Other than the consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but does notinclude the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon,

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporing standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management aither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemnative but fo do sa.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always defect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
rasulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal
control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal contral.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors
report. However, fulure events or condiions may cause the Group to cease lo continue as a going concem.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentatian.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, ameong other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inlernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
indepandence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementis
Based on our audit, we further report thatin our opinion:

a) properbooks of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017,

b) the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated stalement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 and are in agreement with
the books of account and retums;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guaranteas extended during the year were for the purpose of the Group's
business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposiled in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Shaikh Ahmed Salman.

E?qﬁb:-‘ ‘(.- -«L_-:-__

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: 26 December, 2018




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at September 30, 2018

Mote 2018 2017
Asseis (Rupees in thousands)
MNon-Current Assets
Fixed assels
Froperty, plant and equipment 3 2,691,676 2,707,501
Long-term investments 4 2,898,619 2,402,965
Long-term loans 5 4,799 6,570
Long-term deposits 3,928 4,028
5,598 022 5,121,064
Current Assets
Stores and spare parts 6 162,734 119,735
Stock-in-trade 7 2,764,095 1,673,612
Trade debts 8 511,542 254,380
Loans and advances 9 390,470 803,432
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 10 9,517 9,749
Profit accrued on bank deposits 2,741 1,551
Other receivables 11 124,823 136,440
Taxation - net 121,243 98,292
Cash and bank balances 12 767,781 924,306
4,854 946 4,021,497
10,453,968 9,142 561
Total Assets - -
Equity and Liabilities
Share c:apital and Reserves
Share Capital
Authorised
150,000,000 (2017: 150,000,000) Ordinary
shares of Rs.5 each 750,000 750,000
Issued, subscribad and paid-up capital 13 750,000 750,000
Reserves 14 7,347 677 6,233,237
8,097,677 6,983,237
Mon-Current Liabilities
Deferred taxation 15 86,000 98,500
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 1,500,314 1,309,421
Advance from customers 702,369 691,920
Unclaimed dividends 67,608 59,483
2,270,291 2,060,824
Contingencies and Commitments 17
Total Equity and Liabilities 10,453,968 8,142,561

The annexed nates 1 to 35 farm an integral part of these consaolidated financial statements.

—\zm @A_JL@L:_ \%ﬁ_—

Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or loss
for the year ended September 30, 2018

MNote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Met sales and services 18 7,758,520 7,134,930
Cost of sales 19 6,484 268 6,544,790
Gross Profit 1,274,152 590,140
Selling and distribution expenses 20 (252,147) (175,440)
Administrative expenses 21 (183,021) (157,833)
Other operating expenses 22 (56,883) (32,054)
Impairment on long-term investments - available for sale {45,445) -
Other income 23 162,419 246,099
(375,077) (119,228)
Operating Profit 898,075 470,912
Finance income - net 24 53,630 26,407
Profit before taxation 952,705 497,319
Taxation 25 (57,624) 60,000
Profit after taxation 805,081 557,319
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 26 5.97 3.72

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

—L,:H rillaa, . \%‘ —

Amir Bashir Ahmad_- aeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended September 30, 2018

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Profit for the year 895,081 557,319

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may not be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit or loss :

A rial | n defin nefit plan - n ____(390) ___ (275
ctuarial loss on defined benefit pla et 894,691 557,044
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit or loss :
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investments during the year 483,120 421 257
Reclassification adjustmants included in
the statement of profit or loss for: (871) (113,981)
Gain on sale of investments - net of tax 482,249 307,256
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,376,940 864,300

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

'Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended September 30, 2018

Revenue Reserves
Issued Unrealisad
subscriped gain on
and Unappra-  investments
paid-up Capital General priated  available Total Total

Capital Reserve  Reserve profit forsdle  Heserves  Equity
(Rupees in thousands)

Balance as on October 1, 2016 750,000 34,000 3466000 827,753 1453684 5781437 6531437
Cash dividend for the year endad

September 30, 2016 @ 55% - - . {412,500) - (4125000 (412,500
Transter to general reserve - - 412500  (412,500)
Profit for the year - - - 857,319 - 557,319 | 557,319
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (275 307,256 306,981 308,981
Taotal comprehensive income for the year

ended September 30, 2017 - - - 557 044 307256 864,300 864,300
Balance as on September 30, 2017 750,000 34,000 3878500 554797 1760940 6233237 6883237
Cash dividend for the year ended

September 30, 2017 @ 35% . - - {262,500) - (262,500)  (262,500)
Transter to general reserve - - 295,000 (295,000}
Profit for the year - - - 895,081 . 895,081 895,081
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (390] | 482,249 | 481,859| | 481,859
Total comprehensive income for the year
anded September 30, 2018 . - - 894,891 482,249 1378940 1378940
Balance as on September 30, 2018 750,000 34,000 4,173,500 896,988 2243189 7347677 8087677

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

. g, . -

'Amir Bashir Ahmed aeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Exscutive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended September 30, 2018

MNote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 27 . (1,621,692
Finance income received - net
Income tax paid

Long-term loans

Long-term deposits

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 284,786 (1,683,215)

Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed capital expenditure (746,800
Redemption / sale proceeds of investments 207,170
Dividend received . 126,266
Purchase of investments . (162,930
Sale proceeds of fixed assets 12,549

Met cash used in investing activities (186,936) (563,745)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividend paid (254,375) (404,010)
Met cash used in financing activities {254,375) {404,010)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents "~ (156,525) "~ (2,650,970)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 824,306 3,575,276
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 = 767,781 T 924,306

The annexed notes 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e Ll .

"Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Exscutive Director




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
forthe year ended September 30,2018

1.

1.1.

1.2,

1.3

1.4
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Group and its operations

The Group consists of Habib Sugar Mills Limited (the Helding Company) and HSM Energy Limited - a
wholly owned subsidiary Company (the Subsidiary Company). Brief profiles of Halding Company
and its Subsidiary Company are as follows :

Helding Company

The Holding Company is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan, with its shares quoted an
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Holding Company is engaged in the manufacturing and
marketing of refined sugar, molasses, ethanol, liquidified carbon dioxide (CO2), household textiles,
providing bulk storage facilities and trading of commedities. The registered office of the Holding
Company is situated at Imperial Court, 3rd Floor, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

Subsidiary Company

“HSM Energy Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Sugar Mills Limited was incorporated in
Pakistan as a public unlisted company on May 16, 2017. The Registered office of the Subsidiary
Company is situated at 3rd Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.The Subsidiary
Company is in start-up phase and in the process of setting up a 26.5 MW high pressure bagasse
based Cogeneration power project. The Subsidiary Company has been granted Generation license
and upfront Tariff for the period of 30 years by the Mational Electric Power Regulatory Authority
(NEPRA).”

Business Units

Registered office - 3rd Floor, Imperial Court Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.
Mills / Factory - Sugar and Distillery plants are located at District Shaheed Benazirabad, Nawabshah

and Textile Division is located at D-140/B-1, Manghopir Road, S.1.T.E. Karachi.
Terminal - 60/1-B, Oil Installation Area, Kemari, Karachi,

Summary of significant transactions and events that have affected Group’s financial position
and performance during the year:

The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), became applicable to the Group form the current year and
brought certain changes with regards to the preparation of these consclidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group made further investment in Unifoods Industries Limited = related party,
amounting to Rs. 62 million.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the Companies, Act 2017 (the Act),
provisions of and directives issued under the Act. In case requirements differ, the provisions or
directives under the Act shall prevail.



2.2

2.2.1
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2.3

The Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Group for the first time for
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its
Fourth schedule) farms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to
the Group and amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to various
elements of the consolidated financial statements. Additional disclosures include but are not limited
to, particulars of immovable assets of the Group (refer note 3.1.2), management assessment of
sufficiency of tax provision in the consolidated financial statements (refer note 25.3), change in
threshold for identification of executives (refer notes 5 & 2B), additional disclosure requirements for
related parties (refer note 33) etc.

Basis of preparation
Accounting Convention

"These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention,
except for:

. staff retirement benefit plan which is caried at present value of defined benefit obligation net of
fairvalue of plan assets as prescribed in |AS 19 ""Employees Benefits"". And”

. investments which have been recognised at fair value in accordance with the requirements of
IAS-39"Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group over which the Group has the power ta govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than fifty percent of
the vating rights. The consclidated financial statements of the Subsidiary Company are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company is prepared for the same reporting period as for
the Holding Company using consistent accounting policies and changes are made when necessary
to align them with the policies adopted by the Holding Company.

The assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary Company have been consolidated on a line by line basis.
The carrying value of investment held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiary’s
shareholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements. All malerial intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated in full.

Upon the loss of contral, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and the
other companents of equity related to the Subsidiary Company. Any surplus or deficit arising on the
loss of contral is recognised in consolidated staterment of profit and loss. If the Group retains any
interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control
is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale
financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Significant accounting jJudgements and estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and
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judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates
and judgements which are significant to the consclidated financial statements:

a) Determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 2.7.1);
b) Classification and valuation of investments (Mote 2.8);

¢}  Impairment/adjustment of inventories to their net realizable value (Note 2.9 8 2.10);

d)  Accounting for staff retirement benefits (Note 2.13);

e)  Receognition of taxation and deferred tax (Mote 2.16);

f) Contingencies and commitments (Note 17).

Amended /revised standards that became effective

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year except that the Group has adopted the following
standards which became effective for the current year:

IAS7 - Statementof Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiatives (Amendment)

IAS12 - Income Taxes -- Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to according standards and interpretations
did not have any material effect on these consolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective

Following standards and amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standards:

Effective date (accounting periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 2 — Share Based Payments — Classification and Measurement January1,2018
of Share Based Payments Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January1,2018
with IFRS 4 (Amend ments¥

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments July1,2018
IFARS 8 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - (Amendments) January 1, 2019
IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements and |AS 28 Investment in

Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an investar and its Associate or Joint venture Contracts -

(Amendments) Mot yet finalised
IFRS 15-Revenue from Contracts with Customers July1,2018
IFRS 16 -Leases January1,2019
IAS 18 -Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settiement - (Amendments) January1, 2019

IAS 28 -Long-term Interestsin Associates and Joint Ventures - {Amendments)January 1, 2019



2.6

2.7
2.71

IAS 40 -Transfer of Investment Property (Amendments) January1,2018
IFRIC 22— Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration January 1, 2018
IFRIC 23— Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments January1,2019

In May 2014, the |ASB issued IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers which will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, however, early application is
permitted. SECP vide 5.R.0. 007( 1) /2017 dated QOctober 4, 2017, has also notified the adoption of
IFRS 15 for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

According to the new standard, revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or
garvicas to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when, or as, the
customer obtains control of the goods or services. IFRS 15 also includes guidance on the
presentation of contract balances, that is, assets and liabilities arising from contracts with customers,
depending on the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. IFRS
15 supersedes |AS 11, Construction Contracts and IAS 18, Revenue as well as related
interpretations Currently, it is expected that the changes, if any, in the total amount of revenue to be
recognized for a customer contract will be very limited. Besides, changes to the Consclidated
Statement of Financial Position are expected, e.qg. separate line items for contract assets and
contract liabilities are required, and qualitative disclosures are added. Hence, the Group does not
expect significantimpacts on its consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting
perinds beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019, respectively. The Group
expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

Standards issued by |ASB but not yet notified by SECP

Following new standards have been issued by |ASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

IASB Effective date (accounting periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 14— Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
IFARS 17 = Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment

These are stated at costless accumulated depreciation / amortization /impairment {if any), except for
freehold land.

Depraciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss  applying the reducing balance

method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use

and on disposals up to the month the asset is in use, Assets residual values and useful lives are

;eviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate at each date of the consolidated statement of financial position
ate.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consclidated statement of profit or loss as and
when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefit is expected from its use. Gain or loss on disposal of assets is included in consolidated
statement of profit or loss inthe year the assets is derecognised.
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2.7.3

28

2.8.1

2.8

2.10

a2

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Items are transferred to the
respective assets when available forintended use.

Significant barrowing costs related to acquisition, construction and commissioning of a qualifying
asset are capitalised.

Major stores and spare parts

Major stores and spare parts gualify for recognition as property, plant and equipment when the
Group expects to use these for more than one year. Transfers are made to relevant operating
fixed assets category as and when such items are issued for use.

Major stores and spare parts are valued at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Investments

Investments acquired with the intention to be held for over one year are classified as long term
investments. However, these can be sold earlier due to liguidity requirements. Short term
investments are those which are acquired for a2 short period.

Investments are classified as follows:

Available for sale
Quoted
Available for sale investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration

paid including transaction cost. Subsequent toinitial recognition, these investments are re-measured
atfairvalue (quoted market price).

Any gain or loss from a change in the fair value of investments available for sale is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income as unrealised, unless sold, collected or otherwise disposed off, or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time cumulative gain or loss previously
taken to other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
ofthe year.

Un-Quoted
These investment are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Stores and spare parts

These are valued at the lower of moving average cost and net realisable value except for items in
transit which are valued atcost. Provision is made for obsolescence and slow moving items.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued as follows :

Raw materials Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
Work-In-process Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
Finished goods Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
Ferilizers At the lower of cost on FIFQ basis and net realisable value
Bagasse Atthe lower of average cost and net realisable value
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Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. Other receivables are carried at cost less estimates made for doubtful
receivables.

An estimate for doubtful trade debts and other receivables is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost. For
the purposes of the consolidated statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of
cash in hand, with banks on current, savings, treasury call and deposil accounts, net of short term
borrowings under mark-up arrangements, if any.

Staff retirement benefits
Staff gratuity

The Group operates an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all permanent employees.
Minimum qualifying period for entittement to gratuity is five years continuous service with the Holding
Company. The scheme is funded and contributions to the fund are made in accordance with the
recommendations of the actuary.

The latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity scheme was carried out as at September 30, 2018. The
projected unit credit method, using the following significant assumptions, have been used for
actuarial valuation.

Discountrate ) 10.00% per annum
Expected rate of increase in salaries 8.75% perannum

Basaed on the actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme as of September 30, 2018, the fair value of
gratuity scheme assets and present value of liabilities were Rs.106.63 million and Rs.107.02 million
respectively. The Group recognises the total actuarial gains and losses in the year in which they
arise. The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Net Employee Defined Benefit Asset

Present value of defined benefit obligation 107,017 101,748
Fair value of plan assets (108,627) (101,472)
Liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial peosition 390 278
Charge for the year

Salaries, wages and amenities include the following in respect of
employees' gratuity fund:

Current garvice cost 3,896 3,641

Interest cost 7,721 7,389

Expected retumn on plan assets {7,700} {7,379}
3,917 3,651
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The movement in present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

Presant value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 101,748 101,745
Current sarvice cost 3,896 3,641
Interest Cost 7,720 7,389
Benefits paid (4,543) (11,380)
Actuarial (gain) / loss {1,804) 363
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 107,017 101,748
The movement in fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 101 472 101,588
Expactad raturn on assels 7,700 7,379
Contributions 4,192 3,796
Benefits paid (4,543) {11,390)
Actuarial (loss) / gain (2,184) 88
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 106,627 101 472
Actual return on plan assets 5,506 7467
Plan assels comprise:
Tarm deposil receipls 99,000 85,000
Term Finance Cerificates 259 263
Balance with Banks 6,987 15,844
Accrued interest 381 365
106,627 101,472

Comparison of prasant value of defined banafit abligation, the fair value of plan assets and the surplus or deficit of gratuity

fundis as follows:

Asg at September 30, 2018 2017 2015 2014
(Rupees in thousands)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 107,017 101,748 92,164 83,898

Fair value of plan assets (106,627 (101,472) (101,599) (92,338) (83,6838)

(Surplus) / deficit 390 276 (172) 260

Experience adjustment on obligation 10,051 838 (4,292) 3,257 5,629

Experience adjustment on plan assets 2,194 88 (410Q) {3,322) (852)

Sensitivity analysis

Significant assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The possible changes in defined obligation due to change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while helding all other assumptions
constantare as follows :

(Rupees in thousand)

Discount Rate +1% 114,267
Discount Rate -1 % 125,232
Long Term Salary Increases +1 % 125,462
Long Term Salary Increases-1% 113,963
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2.16.1

2.16.2

Provident fund

The Group operates a recognised provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made by the Group and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary
plus applicable cost of living allowance.

Borrowings and their cost
Borrowings are recorded atthe proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expensa in the period in which these are incurred except to the
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and
commissioning of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalised as part of the cost
ofthat asset.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Taxation

Current

Holding company

Provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
income tax laws.

Subsidiary Company

Income of the subsidiary company from power generation is exempt from tax under clause 132 of part
| of second schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly provision for taxation, if any, is
made only for other income which is not covered under the above clause.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the consolidated statement of financial position liability method, on
all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts appearing in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that itis probable thatthe temporary differences will reverse in the future and
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each date of the consolidated statement of
financial position and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

As the provision for taxation has been made partially under the normal basis and partially under the
final tax regime, therefore, the deferred tax liability has been recognised on a proportionate basis in
accordance with TR 27 issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountanis of Pakistan.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settied, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date.
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Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed annually to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated
and impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss .

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, if itis probable that an outflow of resources embadying econemic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are
reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees which is the Group's functional
and presentation currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates ruling
on the consolidated statement of financial position date. Exchange gains and losses are included in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Sales are recorded on despatch of goods to customers.

Income on investments is recorded when the right to receive is established.

Income / profit on bank treasury call and deposit accounts is recorded on accrual basis.
Storage income is recorded on accrual basis.

Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on operating (business) segments of the Group. These business
segments are engaged in providing praduct or services which are subject to risks and rewards that
are different from the risks and rewards of other segments.

Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised at the time
when the Group loses control of the contractual rights that comprises the financial assets. All financial
liabilities are derecognised at the time when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities are taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss currently.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends to settle either on a net basis orto realise the asset or settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution to the Holding Company's sharsholders is recognized as a liability in the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared and other
appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency.



Mote 2018 2017

(Rupees in thousands)
3. Fixed Assets

Property, plant and equipment ;

Operating fixed assets 3.1 2,605,565 2,508,472
Capital work-in-progress 9.4 . 36.1 11 r1 QEF1 19
Major stores and spare parts 1.5 - 2.91 ]

2,691,676 2,707,501

3.1 Operating fixed assets for 2018 :

Drepreciation !
Accumulated  amorization  Accumulated
depreciation /  chargefor  depreciation/  Writhen down Aninual

Cosl Cosl amortization  theyear&  amorization vl rabe of
asal asal asal accumulzled asal a5 al depreciation |/
October 1,  Addtions ! Seplember  Oclober1,  Depreciglion  Seplember  Seplember  amorization
27 {Delalions) 30, 28 207 ondeletions 30, 2018 30, 2018 %
(Rupees in Mausands)
Land
Freahald - Sugar | Distilary division 142,117 45,863 184,980 - . - 164,580 -
Laasahold - Textila division 489 = 489 241 5 P46 243 1.0
Ruildings on freehald land
Sugar division 115,143 . 115,143 67,557 4,758 7236 42,827 10
Distillery divisian 2,243 . M.243 17,641 360 18,01 3242 10
Non-faciary bulkiings 30,228 . w0228 Z3,350 auz 23732 6449 5
Buildings on laazahold land
Teaila divigion 19,335 . 19,335 16,831 250 17,081 2254 10
Plant and machinery
Sugar division 2419210 236,552 2603,425 B41,734 171,120 872 553 1,630,872 il
(52,347) {40,301}
Distillery divigian - Mate 3.1.1 1,233,538 70,842 1,304 380 SRS, T4 BB 042 57,756 B 624 10
Textile division 130,703 662 131,365 19,738 5,154 B4,893 45,472 10
Radway siding - Sugar divisian 466 . 466 465 1 L 2 10
Electric, gas and water installaions -
Sugar [ Distillery division B,808 8,808 8,321 43 8370 438 10
Texdile division 3,501 3,601 2550 &5 3015 586 10
Fumiture, fittings, electrical and
office equipment
Sugar / Distillery division 0,031 12,7 #2501 54,478 5873 60,128 £2573 5
(231) (223)
Tedile division 9,745 78 9,823 921 13 9402 4 5
H3M Energy Limited 452 452 85 85 7
Traglors  trolles and
agricullurg implemeants .
Sugar divigion 2,765 2,765 2,16 10 274 34 .t
Modor cars [ vehicles
Sugar / Distillery division 31,508 785 41,847 16,476 3250 18,501 13576 2
[443) (124}
Textile divizion 764 764 698 T 53 2
Total 4239 6453 358,335 4 535 617 1,731,241 258473 1,950,052 2,605,565
(53,011) (40,648}

3.1.1  Plant and machinery of distillery division include storage tanks of the CO2 unit having written down
value of Rs.15.35 (2017: Rs.17.05) million installed at Coca Cola Beverages Pakistan Limited and
Pakistan Beverages Limited premises for storage of Liquidified Carbondioxide.
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3.1.2 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as

follows:
Particulars Location Total Area
Land Mawabshah, District Shaheed Benazirabad 339.125 Acre
Land D-140/B-1, Manghopir Road, S.1.T.E. Karachi. 1.12 Acre
Land 60/1-B,0il Installation Area, Keamari, Karachi. 4000 Sgm
3.1.3 Reconclliation of carrying values for 2018
Depreciation /
Written amortization Written
down charge for Down
Value the year & value
as at accumulated as at
October 1, Additions / Depreciation September
2017 (Deletions) on deletions 3o, 2018
----- —-(Rupees in thousands)-—--—-
Land 142,365 46,863 b 189,223
Buildings on freehold land 58,026 - 5,461 52,565
Buildings an leasehold land 2,504 - 250 2,254
Plant and machinery 2,272,264 308,056 244,316 2323968
(52,337) (40,301)
Railway siding 3 . 1 2
Electric, gas and water installations 1,138 - 114 1,024
Furniture, fittings, electrical
and office equipment 16,027 13,231 6,089 23,161
{231) (223)
Tractors / trolleys and agriculture implements 49 - 10 39
Mator cars / vehicles 16,096 785 3,233 13,329
(443) (124)
2,508,472 368,935 259,479 2,605,565
(53,011) (40,648)
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3.1.4 Operating fixed assets for 2017 :

Dapraciation /
Accumulated  amortization  Accumulated
depreciation/ chargafor  dapreciation/ Written down Annual

Caosl Caoel amortization  thayear&  amonization valus rata of
asat asat as at accumulatad as al as al dapraciation /
Dctober 1, Additions ! Soplomber  Octobar1,  Depreciation  Saptamber  Saplember  amontization
JiHE (Delations) 30, 27 26 on deledlone 30, 2017 30, 2017 %
eeveeeee{ RUPEAS IF ENHLISAEE e meme
Land

Freshold - Sugar | Distiliery division 106,549 35,568 142,117 - - - 142,117 -

Lexasahold - Tefile division 480 . 483 236 5 241 248 1.1
Buildings on frechold kund

Sugar division 84,543 30,600 115,143 63,735 3822 67,557 47 586 10

Distillary divigian 243 . 243 17,241 400 17,641 602 il

Man-tactary buildings 30,228 . 0224 3,080 360 £330 [%: <] 5
Buildings on leasabold land

Tendile divigion 19,336 . 19,335 16,553 o78 16,631 2504 10
Plant and machinery

Sugar division 1,516,568 1,018,282 2419210 BAZ 814 107,062 B41,734 1,677 476 10

(116,851) {108,172)
Distillery division - Note 3.1.1 1,136,250 47,450 1,283,538 G387 B, 0 GES.T14 a3 B4 10
{180) (173)

Teudile divigion 130,703 . 130,703 74,076 5,663 M, 50,554 10
Ralway siding - Sugar divisian 468 . 458 454 1 485 3 10
Elactrc, gas and water installatans

Sugar / Distillary divigion H,H08 - 8,808 B.267 54 B3 487 10

Teudile divigion 3601 . 350 2878 72 2450 651 10
Fumiture, fittings, alectrical and office
equipmant

Sugar / Digtillary division 67,223 6,112 0,031 53,060 4,561 54,478 15,553 5

(3,304) (3,143)

Taxtila divizion 9,668 w 8,745 9,134 137 827 44 %
Traclors ! tralleys and agricuiture

Implaments

Sugar division 2,765 . 2,765 2,704 12 2718 49 20
Meaor cars [vehiclag

Sugar | Distillary divizion 3,484 183 31,505 11,583 4003 15475 16,080 )

{162)
Teudile divigion 64 = Te4 631 17 £ 65 Rl
Total 3,170,659 1,189,291 4,219,893 1,650,334 192 485 1,739,221 2,508,472
(120,297) {111,589
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3.1.5 Reconciliation of carrying values for 2017
Depreciation /
Written amorlization Whritten
down charge for Down
Value the year & value
as at accumulated as at
Qctober 1, Additions / Depreciation September
2016 (Deletions) on deletions 30, 2017
----- --(Rupees in thousands)--=-------
Land 106,802 35,568 5 142,365
Buildings on freehald land 32,008 30,600 4,582 58,026
Buildings on leasehold land 2,782 - 278 2,504
Plant and machinery 1,342,763 1,116,751 178,764 2,272,264
(116,831) (108,345)
Railway siding 4 1 3
Electric, gas and water installations 1,264 126 1,138
Furniture, fittings, electrical
and office equipment 14,697 6,189 4 698 16,027
(3,304) (3,143)
Tractors / trolleys and agriculture implements 61 - 12 49
Mater cars / vehicles 19,984 183 4,020 16,006
(162) (111)
1,520,365 1,189,291 192,486 2,508,472
(120,297) (111,599)
2018 2017
Mote (Rupees in thousands)
3.2 Allocation of depreciation / amortization charge for the year:
Cost of Sales
Sugar division 19 179,116 113,522
Distillery division 19 71,780 70,466
Textile division 19 5,474 6,018
256,370 190,006
Administrative expenses
Sugar division 21 2,260 1,817
Distillery division 21 194 156
Textile division 21 144 154
Terminal 18.1 426 353
Subsidary Company 85 -
3,109 2,480
259,479 192,486
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33 Details of fixed assets disposed off:

Witien Ralaticnship
Accumulated  down Sala  Gamon  Modeof Partieulars of with
Cosl oepreciation  Value  Procesds  disposal  Disposal Purchasars Purchazar
ceemeeee{RUPEAS IN MOUSANGE)-mee
Plant and Machinery
Sugar division
Slipring Malors 4,721 3,781 566 1,048 89 Negotiation Syed Azam Hussain  None
Tagvi "Hougse 82265,
ShabeerPace”
Gharibadad,
Nawabshah
Juics hastar 1,528 1,208 129 1975 1,848 Negobition MuhemmedMagbool  Mone
Pumps, slectric motars, deep bed "Burewala Vehar,
fitlers and cthers 0,312 25,353 435 5,498 539 Purjab’ Nane
Mud bed filters, nozzsls and others 15,771 9,789 598 g,722 740 g Nane
52,338 0302 1208 1524 3,208
Furnitura, fittings, alectrical and
office equipment
Sugar division [ Distillery division
Fumiture 231 223 B 42 M Negotiation Various Mong
Motor cars [ vehices
Hems having carry vadue of less than
s 50,000 each 441 124 38 3,580 3271 Tendar Various Mane
2018 53,012 40840 1238 18,876 6,51
2017 120,297 111,599 BEI 12,548 3,851
2018 2017
Note (Rupees in thousands)
3.4 Capital work-in-progress
Flant and machinery 39,990 169,868
Building - 7,021
Fees Faid to regulatory bodies / government dept. - 1,975
Consultancy, advisory fees & others 46,121 13,356
Advance to supplier - 3,899
3.4.1 T 86,111 W
341 Movement in capital work-in-progress
Balance at the beginning of the year 180,788 592,155
Cost incurred during the year 69,754 23,752
Transfer from Major stores and spare parts 138,064 727,563
388,606 1,343,470
Transfer to operating fixed assets (302,495)  (1,147,351)
Balance at the end of the year 86,111 186,119
35 Major stores and spare parts
Stores - 2910
3.5.1 - 2,910
3.5.1 Movement in major stores and spare parts
Balance at the beginning of the year 2910 49,365
Additions during the year 135,154 681,108
138,064 730,473
Transfer to capital work-in-progress (138,064)

Balance at the end of the year

(727,563)
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4.1
414

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2

Long-term investments

Mumber of shares Face
value
2018 2017 Rs.

Note

Company Name

82

Available for Sale

Investments in related parties - Quoted - at fair value

Balochistan Particle Board Limited
Bank AL Habib Limited
Habib Insurance Company Limited

UniEnergy Limited
Uni Food Industries Limited

Amreli Stesls Limited

Cherat Cement Company Limited
Dawood Lawrencepur Limited

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
Engro Corporation Limited

Engro Foods Limited

Engro Fertilizer

Engro Polymer & Chemical

Faran Sugar Mills Limited

Fauiji Fertilizer Gompany Limited
Fauji Food Limited

First Habib Modaraba
GlaxoSmithKling Pakistan Limited
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare
Pakistan Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Indus Motors Comparny Limited
International Industries Limited
International Steels Limited

Jubliee Life Insurance Co. Limited
K-Electric Limited

Lucky Cament Limited

MCE Bank Limited

Mehran Sugar Mills Limited

Millat Tractors Limited

Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited
Packages Limited

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited
Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limitad

Thal Limited

The Hub Power Company Limited

TPL Insurance Limited

TPL Corporation Limited

TPL Properiies

The Searle Company Limited

147,797 147,797 5
24,136,691 24,136,691 10
5,363,772 5,363,772 5

Investments in related parties - Unquoted - at cost

1,249,999 1,249,999 10
10,800,000 4,600,000 10

Investments in other companies Quoted - at fair value
40,000 40,000 10
275,160 188,160 10
31,078 31,078 i0
210,000 180,000 10
80,000 80,000 10
12,500 12,500 10
123,200 123,200 10
41,088 30,000 10
90,600 90,600 10
118,885 118,885 0
80,000 20,000 10
188,000 189,000 5
12,100 12,100 10
3,630 3,630 10
400,000 400,000 10
108,213 297,513 10
13,350 13,350 10
101,000 101,000 10
115,000 10,000 10
12,815 12,815 10
1,410,000 1,410,000 10
43,000 33,000 10
50,000 50,000 10
150,116 150,116 10
450 450 10
14,000 14,000 10
20,000 20,000 10
5,150 5150 10
6 ] 10
6,243,098  6.243,008 5
711,503 711,503 5
384,000 384,000 10
60,062 48,322 10
43,246 43,246 10
800,000 800,000 10
23,670 18,725 10
77,000 77,000 10

Investments in associated companies or undertakings have been made in accordance with this the requirements under

the Act.

United Bank Limited

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

525 1,323
1,947,590 | 1,380,273
64,097 79,813
202,212 1,471,409
12,500 12,500
108,000 46,000
120,500 58,500
2,598 4,078
22,164 22,575
5,283 6,062
21,506 27,904
24,930 24,247
1,059 1,188
9,300 7,751
1,183 1,002
6,795 7164
11,608 0,884
2,423 561
2,079 2153
1,789 2,228
1,262 1,011
18,600 13,380
16,380 53,778
18,672 22,8973
21,735 28,310
10,462 1,211
8,008 B,871
7,544 8,926
22,056 18,651
10,061 10,450
15,875 21,081
456 562
1,820 1,588
8,944 11,540
1,596 2,357
15 ]
117,682 81,722
310,934 392,109
33,589 42,935
1,291 8B4
261 382
6,600 8,400
7.478 7,967
11,858 14,643
765,907 873,056
2898618 2,402,865




4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The aggregate cost of the above investments, net of impairment, is Rs.705.43 (2017: As.642.13)
million.

Unrealised gain of Rs.483.12 (2017: Unrealised gain Rs.421.24) million on the above investments,
arising from change in the fair value of these long-term investments during the current year has been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Mote 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Long-term loans - secured, considered good

Executives 51452 3,438 4,636
Other employees 7,068 8,800
53 10,506 13,536

Receivable within next twelve months shown
under current assets:

Executives 9 (767) {(1.571)
Other employees 2] (4,940) (5,385)

5,707 6,966

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was
Rs.1.34 (2017: Rs.4.79) million.

Movement of loans to executives during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,575 292
Disbursements 75 1,607
1,650 1,899
Repayments (883) (324)
Balance at the end of the year 767 1,575

Long-term loans of Rs.10.51 (2017: Rs.13.54) million, include loans of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs.0.17)
million and Rs.2.26 (2017: Rs.3.76) million to executives and workers respectively which carry no
interest as per Group policy and CBA agreement. The balance amount of loan carries interest
@ 7% (2017: 7%) per annum. These are secured against property documents and retirements
benefits. These loans are carried at cost due to practicality and materiality of amounts involved.

Comparative figure have been restated to reflect changes in definition of executive as per
Company Act2017.
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8.1
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Stores and spare parts

Stores
Provision for obsolescence and slow moving stores

Spare parts
Frovision for obsolescence and slow moving spare parts

Stock-in-trade

Raw materials
Distillery division
Textile division

Work-in-process
Sugar division
Textile division

Finished goods
Sugar division
Distillery division
Textile division
Trading division

Bagasse
Fertilizers

Trade debts - considerd goods

Export - Secured against export documents
Local - Unsecured

The aging of trade debts at September 30, is as follows :

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired:
within 90 days
91 to 180 days

Mote

8.1

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
107,684 B4 774
(9,500) (9,500)
98,184 75,274
B4,342 64,253
(19,792) (19,792)
64,550 44 461
162,734 119,735
428,702 242 834
15163 8,572
443 865 251,406
835 1,390
45,154 31,588
45,989 32,978
2,039,530 1,102,539
206,49 267,710
787 a7
2,980 2,980
2,249,788 1,373,326
20,332 12,714
4,121 3,188
2,764,095 1,673,612
363,159 117,711
148,383 136,669
511,542 254,380
504,654 250,265
3,472 2,420
3,418 1,695
511,542 254 380




8.2

10.

1.

12.

Following are the details of debtors In relation to export sales:

Mote
Mame of Foreign Jurisdiction Type of transaction
Switzerland Letter of credit
Dubai Letter of credit
India Letter of credit
Germany Letter of credit
United Kingdom Letter of credit
United Kingdom Document against payment
Loans and advances - considered good
Loans - secured
Current maturity of long-term loans
Executives 5
Other Employees 5

Advances - unsecured
Suppliers

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments

Trade deposits
Short-term prepayments

Other receivables - Considered good

Duty drawback and research & development support claim
Cash freight support receivable

Dividend receivable

Sales tax refundable / adjustable .
Others 114

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand

Balances with banks in :
Current accounts

Treasury call accounts 121
Term Deposit Receipts 12.2
12.3

2018

2017

(Rupees in thousands)

55,236 -
80,845 90,554
175,420 -

- 6,058
10,881 4,289
30,777 16,810

363,159 117,711
767 1,571
4,940 5,395
5,707 6,866
384,763 796,466
390,470 “803,432°
751 731
8,766 8,598
9,517 9,748
31,582 17,112
89,280 -
3,673 3,336
- 115,686
288 306
124,823 136,440
275 273
100,658 19,682
126,848 169,451
540,000 735,000
767,506 824,033
767,781 824,306

85




121

12.2

12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

15.

86

Profit rates on treasury call accounts ranged between 3.75% 1o 6.40% (2017: 3.75% to 5.50%) per
annum.

Profit rates on Term Deposit Receipts ranged between 5.80% to 6.40% (2017: 5.80% to 6.05%)
pPerannurm.

Maturity of these Term Deposit Receipts are one month.
Includes Rs.695.16 (2017: Rs.895.90) million kept with Bank AL Habib Limited - a related party.
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2018 2017 Note 2018 2017
(Number of Shares) (Rupees in thousands)

Ordinary Shares of Rs. 5 each

10,136,700 10,136,700 fully paid in cash >0,604 W),664
139,863,300 139,863,300  Ordinary Shares of Rs. 5 each
issued as bonus shares gg'gég ggg'gég
150,000,000 150,000,000 d :

lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Group includes 14,896,001 Ordinary shares of
Rs.5 each {2017: 23,764,498) held by related parties at the end of the year.

WVoting rights, Board Selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the
shareholding.

Note 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)

Reserves
Capital

Share premium 34,000 34,000
Revenue

General 14.1 4,173,500 3,878,500

Unappropriated profit 896,988 559,797

Unrealised gain on investments - available for sale 2,243,189 1,760,940

7,313,677 6,199,237
7,347,677 6,233,237

At the beginning of the year 3,878,500 3,486,000
Transferred from unappropriated profit 285,000 412,500
4,173,500 3,878,500

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax liability on accelerated tax depreciation allowance on

operating fixed assets taxable temporary differences: 210,000 203,000
Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary difference:

Pravision for obsolescence and slow maoving stores & spare parts (7,000) (7,000}

Unabsorbed tax depreciation allowance {117,000) (92,000)

Unadjusted tax credit on investment (5,500)

(1 24,600} (104,500)

86,000 98,500




16.

16.1

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

Mote 2018 2017

{Rupees in thousands)
Trade and other payables

Creditors 1,191,593 1,043,251
Accrued liabilities 219,710 201,662
Payable to Employees Gratuity Fund 380 276
Sales-tax / Federal excise duty 22,793 -

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 16.1 50,783 26,474
Workers' Welfare Fund 14,945 37,141
Income-tax deducted at source 100 617

1,500,314 1,309,421

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Balance at the beginning of the year 26,474 51,983
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 443 1,094
26,917 53,077
Amount paid to the WPPF (26,917) {53,077)
Allocation for the year 22 50,783 26,474
Balance at the end of the year 20,783 26,474

Contingencies and commitments

On May 22, 2015 the Govermnmaent of Pakistan promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development (GID)
Cess Act, 2015 and levied GID Cess on gas bills at the rate of Rs.100 / MMBTU on all industrial
consumers. The GID Cess Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the
GID Cess Act, 2011 and GID Cess Ordinance, 2014,

The Holding Company challenged the vires of GID Cess Act, 2015 before the Honourable High Court
of Sindh. On July 24, 2015 the Honourable High Court of Sindh passed an order restraining the
SSGC from demanding and collecting GID Cess as levied by the GID Cess Act, 2015. On October
26, 2016, the case was decided by the double bench of the Honourable High Court of Sindh in favour
of the Holding Company. The Government has filed a review appeal before the double bench of the
Honourable High Court of Sindh, where the Halding Company was not made party to such litigation.
Currently, GID Cess is not being charged to the Haolding Company by SSGC.

The Financial exposure of the Holding Company upto September 30, 2018 is Rs.40.08 (2017: 35.82)
million. However, in view of the advice of legal counsel no provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Government of Sindh vide notification dated July 8, 2014 levied a fee of Rs.0.50/litre for storage
of rectified spiritin bonded warehouse at Terminal Keamari, Karachi. The Holding Company disputed
the above levy and filed constitutional petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh,
challenging the above fee. On July 23, 2014, the Honourable High Court of Sindh granted stay and
suspended the operation of the above natification. The case was lastly fixed for hearing on October 9,
2018 and was not taken up for hearing. The financial exposure as at September 30, 2018 is Rs.62.03
million. In view of the advice of legal counsel, the Holding Company is confident of a favourable
outcome of the case and accordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial
statements.

FPursuant to the decision of ECC on January 10, 2013, the FBR vide its SRO No. 77(1)/2013 dated
February 7, 2013, allowed benefit to sugar exporters by reducing FED rate from 8.0% to 0.5% on
local sales, equivalent to quantity exported by the mills. The Holding Company availed the benefit
and claimed As.56.56 million on account of reduced rate of FED.

a7




17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

o8

Against the aforementioned claim, FBR disallowed an amount of Rs.7.0 million and also levied
default surcharge of Rs.0.3 million. The disallowances was on the basis that the benefit of claim
accrues and arises from February 7, 201 3, the date of SRO Mo: 77(1) /2013 and not from January 10,
2013, the date of ECC meeting wherein the benefit was approved by ECC. The Holding Company
maintains that the sugar mills are entitled to avail the benefit of reduced rate of FED on sugar
exported against the export guota allotted by ECC in its meeting held on January 10, 2013.
Accordingly, the Holding Company filed a suit before Honourable High Court of Sindh and the
operations of the said order were suspended by the Honourable Court vide its order dated April 23,
2014, The Helding Company withdrew suit on November 14, 2018 and filed an appeal before
commissioner inland revenue to set-aside impugned demand or any other relief which may deem fit
as per law. In view of the advice of legal counsel, the Holding Company is confident of a favourable
outcome and accordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

During the year 2009-10 the Holding Company alongwith other sugar mills filed a Constitutional
Petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan Standards and Quality Control
Authority- PSQCA challenging the notifications issued in respect of registration of the Standard Mark
for refined sugar manufactured and sold by the Holding Company and levy of marking fee at the rale
of 0.1% of ex-factory price of sugar sold with effect from January 1, 2009.

On December 4, 2012 the Honourable High Court of Sindh decided the case in favour of the
Holding Company. Against the above order, PSQCA filed an appeal before the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan. On November 25, 2013 the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan
passed an interim order against PSQCA restraining them from demanding any registration of
standard marks / licensing fee from the sugar mills till further order and the case was adjourned to
dale in office,

According to the advice of legal counsel, the demand raised is without any lawful authority and is in
violation of the Constitution, hence, no provision is made in this regard.

The Holding Company has provided counter guarantees to Bank AL Habib Limited, a related party,
amounting to Rs. 250.00 (2017: Rs. 250.00) million against agriculture finance facilities to the
growers supplying sugarcane to the mills and counter guarantees to other banks amounting to
Rs.2,021.34 (2017: 1,691.76) million against guarantees issued by banks in favour of third parties on
behalf of the Holding Company. These guarantees are secured by way of registered charge against
hypothecation of stores and spares, stock-in-trade, assignment of trade debts and other receivables.

Commitments for capital expenditure amounting to Rs.1.79 (2017: 85.20) million.

Rentals under operating lease agreements in respect of vehicles, payable over the following next
fouryears, are as follows:

2018 2017
Year ending September 30 (Rupeas in thousands)
2018 - 13,709
2019 16,955 10,306
2020 13,296 6,461
2021 8,875 2177
2022 3,447 -
42,573 32,653
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22,

23.

231

23.2

24,

241

242

Note 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)

Other operating expenses
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 16.1 50,783 26,474
Workers' Welfare Fund 6,100 5,580
56.883 32,0504
Other income
Income from financial assets
Profit on redemption / sale of investments 231 871 113,981
Dividend incomea 232 108,521 120,629
Exchange gain - net 35,986 2,152
145,378 236,762
Income from non financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 6,513 3,851
Agricultural income 2,579 2,245
Scrap sale 7,948 3,241
17,041 9,337
162,419 246,099

Profit on redemption of units includes profit of the following funds managed by Habib Asset
Management Limited, a related party.

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
First Habib Asset Allocation Fund 209 -
First Habib Islamic Income Fund = 35
209 35
Dividend income includes dividend received from the following related parties :
Note 2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
Bank AL Habib Limited 72410 84,478
Habib Insurance Company Limited 4,023 9,387
76,433 93,865
Finance income - net
Profit an treasury call accounts 121 6,931 10,733
Frofit an term deposit receipts 12.2 88,282 77,710
Interest on loan to employees 601 475
85,814 88,918
Less:
Mark-up / interest on:
Short-term borrowings 241 &24.2 ) ;
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (443 (1,094)
Bank charges (16,501 (14,984)
T (42,184)  (82,511)
53,630 26,407

The financial facilities from various commercial banks amounted to Rs.8,212 (2017: Rs.5,313)
million.

These facilities are secured by way of registered charge against hypothecation of stock-in-trade,
stores and spares, assignment of trade debts and other receivables. The rate of mark-up during
the year was 2.20% (2017: 2.25% ta 7.54%) per annum.
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25,

251

25.2

25.3

25.3.1

26.

106

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Taxation
Income tax - current 70,124 -
prior years - {54,500)
70,124 (54,500}
Deferred tax (12,500) (5,500)
251 57,624 (60,000}
Reconciliation of tax (income) / charge for the year
Accounting profit 952,705 497,319
Corporate tax rate 29% 30%
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 276,284 149,186
Tax effect of timing differences (12,500} 3,839
Tax effect of lower tax rates on export and certain income (243,266) {132,065)
Tax effect of income exempt from tax (748) (643)
Tax effect of tax credits (36,138) {107,000)
Tax effect of expenses that are inadmissible
in determining taxable income 73,992 81,173
Adjustment relating to prior years = {54 500)
(218,660) (209,196)
57,624 {60,000)

The income tax return for the Tax year 2018 (financial year ended Septernber 30, 2017) has been
filed.

Comparison of tax provision and tax assessment for previous years:

Financial years Taxyears Tax Provision
Assessed for Taxation

{(Rupees in thousands)

September 30,2017 Taxyear2018 25.3.1 - -
September 30,2016 Taxyear2017 150,173 167,000
September 30, 2015 Taxyear2016 166,377 175,000

Mo tax liability due to loss and available tax credit.
2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

Profit after taxation 895,081 557,319
Number of ordinary shares of Rs.5 each 150,000,000 150,000,000
Eamnings per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 5.97 3.72




27.

271

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation / amortization

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Profit an redemption / sale of investments

Finance income - net

Impairment on long term investment - available for sale
Dividend income

Working capital changes - note 27.1

Waorking capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores and spare parts

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Advance from customers

Met changes in working capital

2018

2017

{Rupees in thousands)

952,705 497,319
259,479 192,486
(6,513) (3,851)
(871) (113,981)
(53,630) (26,407)
45,445 -
(108,521) (120,629)
135,389 (72,382)
(764.544)  (2,046,629)
323,550  (1,621,692)
(42,999) (10,892)
(1,090,483)( | (1,271,765)
(257,162) (190,212)
412,962 (557,148)
232 (968)
11,954 (120,282)
(965,496) (2,151,265)
190,503 (281,257)
10,449 385,893
200,952 104,636
(764,544)  (2,046,629)

107




28.

281

28.2

28.3

28.4

29

291

108

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

2018 2017
Chiaf Chief
Execu- Direg- Execu- Total Execu- Direc- Execu- Total
tive fors tives live tors tives

(Rupees in thousands)

Managerial
Remuneration 12,000 14,132 77,563 103,695 11,200 8,660 67,004 B6,B64

Perquisites
Telaphone 42 39 404 485 42 27 421 490
Bonus - - BB7F BETT - - 7078 7079
Medical 180 14 3727 4631 252 178 2,269 2,699
Utilities - 627 - 627 - 541 - 541
Entertainment - 305 - 305 - 462 - 462
Retirement bansfits 850 1,036 5143 7028 802 641 5384 6837
13,082 16,853 95514 125449 12296 10,509 82167 104,972
Mumber of persons 1 2 25 28 1 2 22 25

Chief Executive, Directors and certain Executives are also provided with the Group maintained
cars.

Aggregate amount charged in these consclidated financial statements in respect of directors'
mesting fee paid to five Non Executive Directors of Rs. 0.50 million (2017: Rs.0.57 million for five
Directors)

OnJuly 24, 2018 Mr. Farouoq Habib Rahimtocla was co-opted as Director in place of Mr. Munawar A.
Habibwho has resigned on July 24, 2018.

Comparative figure have been restated to reflect changes in definition of executive as per Company
Act2017.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, interest risk, liquidity
risk, foreign currency risk, equity price risk and capital risk. The Board of Directors of the Group (the
Board) reviews and decides policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties
and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Group is exposed to credit risk on loans, advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables
and bank balances and profit accrued thereon. The Group seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure
through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where
applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:



29.1.1

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Leng-term loans 4,799 6,570
Long-term deposits 3,928 4,028
Trade debts 511,542 254,380
Loans and advances 390,470 803,432
Trade deposits 751 751
Profit accrued on bank deposits 2,741 1,551
Other receivables 124,823 136,440
Bank balances 767,506 924,033

1,806,560 2,131,185

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as
shown below:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)
Trade debts
Customers with no default in past one year 511,542 250,265

Customers with some defaulls in past one year
which have been fully recovered - 4,115

Customers with default in past one year
which have not yet been recovered

29.1.2 Bank Balances
Al+ 767,218 822,270
A2 193 1,663
__767.411 __ 923,933

29,2

Interestrate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Atthe date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the bank balances of Rs.666.85 (2017:
As.904.45) million are subject to interest rate risk. Applicable interest rates have been indicated in
Mote 12 to these consolidated financial statements. Group's profit after tax for the year would have
been Rs.4.74 (2017: Rs.6.33) million higher / lower if interest rates have been 1% higher / lower
while holding all other variables constant.
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28.3

25.4

110

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due.

Year ended On Less than dto12 1105 =5
September 30, 2018 demand 3 months months years years Total

(Rupees In thousands)

Trade and other payables - 544,704 955,460 - - 1,600,164
Advance from cuslomers - 702,369 - - - 702,269
1,247,073 955,480 . - 2,202,533
Year ended
September 30, 2017 On Less than 12 1105 »5
demand 3 months maonths years years Tatal
{Rupees In thousands) -
Trade and other payables - 409,376 894,995 - . 1,308,371
Advance from customers - 691,920 - - . 81,820
1,101,296 899,995 - B, 2,001,201
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or a financial liability will fluctuate
due to change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due
to transactions in foreign currency. The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2018 2017
(Rupees in thousands)

Trade debts $ 2,676,190 1,095,175

E 189,470 16,361

Advance from customers % 242134 170,585
The following significant exchange rates have

been applied at the reporting dates:

Exchange rates buying $ 124.20 105.37

selling $ 124.40 105.57

buying £ 162.44 141.35

selling £ 162.69 141.62

The foreign currency exposure is parily covered as the outstanding balance at the year end is
determined in respective currency which is converted into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at
the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Sensitivity analysis:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit before tax and the Group's

equity to a reasonably possible change in the foreign currency exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant.



29.5

29.6

29.7

Change in Effect Effect

foreign currency on profit on equity
rate (%) (Rupees in thousands)
September 30, 2018 +10 33,304 32,941
-10 (33,304) (32,941)
September 30, 2017 +10 9,970 9,852
-10 (9,970} (9,852)
Equity price risk

The Group's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about
future values of investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through
diversification and placing limits on individual and total investments. Reports on the investment
portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior management on a regular basis. The Investment
Committee of the Group reviews and approves policy decisions.

At the date of the consolidated statement of financial position, the exposure to investments held as
available for sale was Rs.2,898.62 (2017: Rs.2,402.97) million.

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure ample availability of
finance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce
the cost of capital.

The Group manages ils capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares

The gearing ratio of the group is Nil (2017: Nil) and the group finances its investments portfolio
through management of its working capital and equity with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix
between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Financial assets which are tradeable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the date of the statement of financial position. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets
and liabilities is considered not significantly different from book value.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technigues:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data.
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30.

30.1

30.2

30.3

2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in thousands)
Long-term investments 2,778,119 - 120,500 2,898,619
2,778,119 - 120,500 2,898,619

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in thousands)
Long-term investments 2,344,465 - 58,500 2,402,965
2,344,465 - 58,500 2,402,965

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and Mo
transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurement.

Capacity and production

2018 2017
Working Working
Quantity days Quantity days

Sugar division
Crushing capacity 11,000  M.Tons Per Day 7,000  M.Tons Per Day
Crushing based on actual

waorking days 1,540,000 M.Tons 140 896,000 M.Tons 128
Actual crushing 1,028801 M.Tons 140 B65,530 MTons 128
Sucrose recovery 1030 % 897 %
Sugar production 106,005  M.Tons B6316  M.Tons

Crushing capacity enhanced to 11,000 M. Tons per day under BMR and trial run successfully
completed during last week of crushing season 2016-17. Sugar unit operated below capacity due to
lesser Availability of sugarcane.

Distillery division

a) Ethanol
Capacity 34,000 300 34,000 M.Tens 300
Actual production 34,643 335 33,687 M.Tens 344

b) Liquidified carbon dioxide (Co2)

Capacity 18,000 300 18,000 M.Tons 300
Actual production 9,903 248 11,069 M.Tons 277
¢) During the year, CO2 plants operated below capacity due to lower dermand.

Textile division

Capacity 560,000 Kgs. 300 560,000 Kgs. 300

Actual production 928,557 Kags. 300 515,253 Kgs. 300

The actual production of textile division was higher than the capacity due to Weaving from outside source.
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31.

A1

31.2

3.3

32

Provident Fund related disclosure

The following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund as at September
30:

2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Size of the fund - Total assets 307,631 298,223
Fair value of investments 292175 278,358
Fercentage of investments made 84,98 83.34

The cost of above investments amounted to Rs.253.18 million (2017: Rs.256.40 million).

The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

2018 2017 2018 2017
(Percentage) (Rupees in thousands)
Mational savings scheme 93.65 82,18 273,618 256,575
Bank deposits 6.31 7.78 18,438 21,662
Debt securities 0.04 0.04 119 121
100.00 100.00 292175 278,358

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section218 of the Companies Act 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Number of Employees 2018 2017
Total  Factory Total  Factory
{ Number )
MNumber of employees including contractual employees at Seplember 30 554 432 £56 433
Average number of employees including contractual employees during the year 542 421 560 441

Transactions with related parties

Related parties comprise of subsidiary, associated entities, entities with common directorship,
directors and key management personnel. Material transactions with related parties during the year,
other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements

are as follows: 2018 2017
{Rupees in thousands)
Insurance premium paid 25,784 28,499
Insurance claims 200 7,185
Profit on treasury call accounts / term deposits 94,527 83,034
Profit accrued on bank deposits 2,713 1,449
Purchase of investments 161,900 56,100
Sale proceeds of investments 50,210 10,035
Dividend received 76,433 93,865
Dividend paid 41,588 65,572
Bank charges 955 470

Transactions with related parties are carried out under normal commercial terms and conditions.
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Following are the related parties with whom the group had entered into transactions or have
arrangement/agreementin place.

Name Basis of association Percentage
of shareholding

Bank Al Habib Limited Common directorship 1.61
Hahib Insurance Company Limited Common directorship 4.21
Habib Mercantile Company (Pvt.) Limited Common directorship -
Habib Sons (Pvt.) Limited Common directorship
Habib Assets Management Limited Commen directorship
Hasni Textile (Pvt.) Limited Commaon directorship -
UniFood Industries Limited Key Management Personnel are directors  15.43

34, Dividend

The Board of Directars of Holding Company in their meeting held on December 26, 2018 have
proposed a final cash dividend of Rs.2.75 per share (5%) for the year ended Seplember 30, 2018,
The approval of the members for the proposad final Cash dividend will be obtained at the Annual
General Meeting of the Holding Company to be held on January 28 , 2019,

Under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, a tax on every public company shall be
imposed at the rate of 5% of accounting income before tax. However, this tax shall not be applied in
case of a public company which distributes profit equal to 20% of its after tax profits within six months
fromthe end of the year.

Based on the fact the Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed 55% dividend for the
year ended September 30, 2018 which exceeds the above prescribed minimum dividend
requirement, the Holding Company believes that it would not eventually be liable to pay tax on its
undistributed profits as of September 30, 2018.

35, General

35.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

35.2 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on December 26, 2018 by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company

Amir Bashir Ahmed Raeesul Hasan Murtaza H. Habib
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Director
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Pattern of Shareholding as at September 30, 2018
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Pattern of Shareholding as on September 30, 2018
Additional Information

Shareholders' Categories

Number of

Sharaholdars

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties

Habib Mercantile Co. (Pvt.) Ltd.
Habib & Sons (Pvt.) Lid.

Bank Al Habib Ltd.

Habib Insurance Co. Ltd.

NIT and ICP

National Invastment (Unit) Trust (NIT)
Investment Corporation of Pakistan

Directors, CEQ and thelr spouses and minor children

Asghar D. Habib Chairman
Ali Raza D. Habib Director
Muhammad Nawaz Tishna (NIT Nomines) ~ Director
Murtaza H. Habib Director
Shams Mohammad Haji Director
Amin Ali Abdul Hamid Director
Director

Faroug Habib Rahimtoola
Raeesul Hasan
Mrs. Tahira Ali Asghar W/o Mr. Asghar D. Habib
Mrs. Razia Wio Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib

Executives
Public Sector Companies and Caorporations

Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions.
Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas
and Pension Funds

General Public
a). Local
b). Foreign

Others

Charitable & Other Trusts
Societies

Govarnment Institution

|COM Industrie Und Handels, Schaan

Principality of Liechtenstain
National Investment (Unit) Trust (NIT)
Bank Al Habib Ltd.

Chief Executive

b b

S S S S S ——y

[y%)

46

10

4,807
72

18
2
1

4,871

26,513,125

10,518,253
8415312

The detail of transactions by the Company's Directors, Executives and their Spouses during the year:

Number of
Sharas Held

510,668
521,283
8,415,312
4,448,758

10,618,253
2,818

3,821,357
445,536

3,754,512
5,000
23,971
5,000

31
1,823,677
325,078

1,269
37,851,863

16,117,339

44,764,498
1,594,348

14,039,672
9.9??

150,000,000

Name Date No of Shares
Mrs. Tahira Ali Azghar - Spouse of Chairman | 12.01.2018 5,000 Gift
Mr. Asghar D. Habib - Chairman/ Director 28.03.2018( 1,266,940 |Received against
Mr. Ali Raza D. Habib 28.03.2018 422 318 | distribution upon
Mr. Murtaza H. Habib 28.03.2018| 2,533,748 |closura/liquidation
Mr. Munawar Ali Habib 28.03.2018 422 311 of the Company
Syed Ali Niaz Akhtar 28.03.2018 49
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Form of Proxy

The Company Secretary
Habib Sugar Mills Limited

Imperial Court, 3rd Floor
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road
KARACHI - 75530

we ... . of
a member(s) of HABIB SUGAR MILLS LIMITED and helding S
ordinary shares, as per Folio No. and for CNIC Participant's
I.D. Numbers
and Account / Sub-AccountMNo.
hereby of

or failing him of

another member of the Company to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the
57" Annual Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, January 28, 2019
and at any adjournment thereof.

Aswilnessmy/ourhandthis___________ dayof 2019
Rs. Five
Revenue
Stamp
SIGNATURE OF MEMBER(S)
1. Witness Signature 2. Witness Signature
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC/Passport No: CNIC/Passport Mo:

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another member
of the Company as a proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf.

Any individual beneficial owner of CDC, entitled to and vote at this meeting must bring his
fher MNational Identity Card, Account and Participant's ID Numbers to prove his / her
identify, and in case of proxy, must enclose attested copies of his / her National |dentity
Card, Account and Participant's ID Numbers. Representatives of corporate members
should bring the instrument.

The instruments appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney
duly authorised in writing. If the member is a corporation its common seal (if any) should be
affixed to the instrument.

The instrument appointing a proxy, together with the power of attorney (if any) under which
it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, Should be deposited at the registered
office ofthe Company atleast 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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